
In ancient Egypt the Pharaohs were regarded as Gods. Each Pharaoh
did his duty according to his power and assignment. History has
chosen two Pharaohs and elevated them above all the others. One of
them is the “Golden Boy” Tutankhamun, (more info at ’Tutan-
khamun, the Young Lion) and the other one is Akhenaten, the founder
of a religion. This theme is about Akhenaten as a Pharaoh, God and
founder of a religion.
Note that I in this context use available material and that I interpret it
according to my knowledge.

The olive branch/tree

is a symbol of Israel
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Akhenaten’s biological parents were, as is already known, Amenhotep III and Tiye. The statue of these
three persons depicts them as looking fairly alike in a biological way, i.e. the information about his
biological parents is correct. His mother Tiye was a woman of great intellect.

Simultaneously we can see that Akhenaten and Nefertiti were not the biological parents of Tutankhamun. The statue
of Tutankhamun reminds us of neither Akhenaten nor Nefertiti and she only gave birth to Akhenaten’s daughters.
To secure his royal throne Akhenaten arranged the marriage between his daughter Ankhesenamun and Tutankhaten.
In that way Tutankhaten entered the royal family and Dynasty 18. More info at the link Tutankhamun.
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       Abram, Cosmic Adam,
                 Abraham, Earthly Adam
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Jacob is renamed ”Israel”
Genesis 32:27-30 describes how Jacob fights with God, face to face:
“And he said unto him, "What is thy name?" And he said, "Jacob." And
he said, "Thy name shall be called no more Jacob, but Israel; for as a
prince hast thou power with God and with men, and hast prevailed." And
Jacob asked him, and said, "Tell me, I pray thee, thy name." And he said,
"Why is it that thou dost ask after my name?" And he blessed him there.
And Jacob called the name of the place Peniel [that is, the Face of God]:
"For I have seen God face to face, and my life is preserved."” Jacob’s struggle with God, Genesis 32:27-30

More info at
pp 23+25 and
the link ’Dark
Matter and its
Existence” pp
17-21.

Above we can fairly clearly see that Jacob met our Lord and that he looked like him. Jacob noticed that the Lord was of his
family, which was unknown to him, and asked his name. But he did not get an answer. Jacob’s name was, however,
changed into Israel. In this context blessing is equal to killing, Jacob was killed. Part of the strategy of the Serpent God was
the change of names of an important person. Thereafter the person was killed and the Lord assumed his identity and thus
Israel became the father of Jacob’s sons. This also happened to Jacob and

Israel took over Jacob’s family.
Whoever managed to see the face
of the Lord had to die immediately
according to Moses. This meant
that Jacob was not to see his
twelfth son Benjamin alive.

We need to remember that the five original
Books of Moses are lost, but I refer to The
Book of Mormon. It is based on Joseph’s
descendants e.g. Lehi, Sariah, Laman,
Lemuel, Sam and Nephi.  Nephi and his bro-
thers kill the Jew Laban and take from him
the Jewish chronicles etched onto brass
plates containing the five original Books of
Moses. (Year 600 B.C., Daniel’s time.)

The Books of Moses in the Bible are recent
chronicles. The question is who wrote down
the dialogue between Jacob and God, since
Moses was then not alive.
I try to recreate Jacob’s twelve sons from
different animal species according to Gen.
49 and Deuteronomy 33.

Israel blesses Joseph and his sons.
See below, page 6.
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Israel blesses Jacob’s sons, Gen.49
Top-level knowledge. Israel knew that Jacob’s twelve sons came from twelve
different animal species. Furthermore, he told each one of Jacob’s sons what
the future would look like and what part they were going to play. Jacob
obviously did not have this extensive knowledge. If we read carefully we
notice that Israel’s story about Jacob’s sons is an extensive, careful plan for the
future for each one of Jacob’s sons. The only thing Jacob knew and mastered
was fraud in his own environment.

Jacob was reincarnated into my family and my father knew him
personally. The Bible describes him as being around 180cm tall,
weighing 85 kilos, a strong, muscular man. He was active in the
1930s and 40s. The whole town of Baja knew him well, but
nobody knew it was “Jacob”, the Biblical swindler, who struck
again. He was called “the black sheep” of the family. Also Isaac
was reincarnated into my family and my father knew him well,
too.

The Levi lineage gave birth to priests,
religion, politics and politicians.

 ” Judah is a lion's whelp; from the prey, my son,
thou art gone up. He stooped down, he couched
as a lion, and as an old lion; who shall rouse him
up?”

”Joseph is a
fruitful bough,
even a fruitful
bough by a well,
whose branches
run over the wall”

”Benjamin
shall raven as
a wolf”

Jacob and Israel



Manasseh Ephraim

Ephraim
Lulal King of
Bad-tibira

Manasseh, Shara, King of Umma

Joseph
Dumuzi, King of  Uruk

More info page 42

Israel blesses Joseph and his sons.
Gen. 48

Israel blesses Joseph and his sons.
Gen. 48

/…/ And Israel beheld Joseph's sons, and said, "Who are these?"
And Joseph said unto his father, "They are my sons, whom God
hath given me in this place." And he said, "Bring them, I pray
thee, unto me, and I will bless them. Now the eyes of Israel were
dim with age, so that he could not see.) And he brought them near
unto him; and he kissed them and embraced them. And Israel said
unto Joseph, "I had not thought to see thy face; and lo, God hath
shown me also thy seed." And Joseph brought them out from
between his knees, and he bowed himself with his face to the
earth. And Joseph took them both, Ephraim in his right hand
toward Israel's left hand, and Manasseh in his left hand toward
Israel's right hand, and brought them near unto him. And Israel
stretched out his right hand and laid it upon Ephraim's head, who
was the younger, and his left hand upon Manasseh's head, guiding
his hands wittingly; for Manasseh was the firstborn/…/

A ladder in the shape of a serpent..
A tall ladder symbolizing winged angels. The wings are
symbols of a spaceship, a link between Heaven and Earth.
Jacob did not have a spaceship at his disposal.

Inanna
Goddess of Heaven
and Earth

Israel

We often say that history
repeats itself. Some members
of the Sumerian Divine
family: Dumuzi, Inanna,
Shara and Lulal. Below we
can see that Inanna as Israel
and Dumuzi as Josef knew
each other.

Crosswise
blessing

/…/ And he blessed Joseph and said, "God, before whom my
fathers Abraham and Isaac walked, the God who fed me all my
life long unto this day, the Angel who redeemed me from all evil,
bless the lads; and let my name be named on them, and the name
of my fathers Abraham and Isaac; and let them grow into a
multitude in the midst of the earth." And when Joseph saw that his
father laid his right hand upon the head of Ephraim, it displeased
him; and he held up his father's hand to remove it from Ephraim's
head unto Manasseh's head. And Joseph said unto his father, "Not
so, my father, for this is the firstborn. Put thy right hand upon his
head." And his father refused and said, "I know it, my son, I know
it. He also shall become a people, and he also shall be great; but
truly his younger brother shall be greater than he, and his seed
shall become a multitude of nations." And he blessed them that
day, saying, "In thee shall Israel bless, saying, God make thee as
Ephraim and as Manasseh.'" And he set Ephraim before
Manasseh. And Israel said unto Joseph, "Behold, I die; but God
shall be with you, and bring you again unto the land of your
fathers. Moreover I have given to thee one portion above thy
brethren, which I took out of the hand of the Amorite with my
sword and with my bow." From the text above we can clearly see
that the Serpent Deity as Israel planned for the future, for the End
of Time. Then Ephraim will address the most important issue for
Israel/the Lord. Jacob had never taken ”one portion above” from
the Amorite by using violence.

This might
mean that Israel
did not die but
Ascended when
time was right.

5-6 Oct. 539 B.CNabonidus
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  The Neutron Star Aton or Aton, the Sun

The Sun’s symbol was the deity Amon-Re. What did they mean by worshipping the same sun and give it a new
name? Nothing at all. I always maintain that top-level knowledge is Life and vice versa. Akhenaten knew about the
binary star system and the Sun’s dark twin, the neutron star. He named it Aton. Sumerians knew about the binary
star system and the neutron star AN. The neutron star was then, as a comet, on its way back from its narrow orbit
in order to pass the Sun. Even Akhenaten knew this and gave the star a new name: Aton. Thereby he founded the
new religion: ”Worship of Aton, the Sun”.

Akhenaten and his family connected to worshipping the Sun. We can
clearly see his female body. He was neither man nor woman. He was a
short gentleman with sick, abnormal looks, an elongated cranium, a
thin bird’s neck, the spindly calves of a stork, the fat thighs of a matron,
a puffed-up potbelly below a sunken chest, the narrow, sloping
shoulders of a girl and dreaming, degenerated traits. This is how history
remembers him

Akhenaten’s whole family was involved in the secret doctrine
while the people believed it was about the Sun as a new
religion. All drawings clearly demonstrate that Aton’s rays
irradiated the whole family. The rays can also be looked upon
as knowledge, knowledge that was only for the royal family.

  The Olive Branch and Sun Worship

Detail of a relief depicting Ak-
henaten’s sacrifice of an olive
branch to Aton. The rays of the sun
disc end in small hands, many of
them hold ankh signs, the symbol
of life. Life seems to be the most
important issue for Akhenaten.

The olive branch is a symbol of
Israel. To the right we see Ak-
henaten’s female hand and fingers.



Akhenaten’s hymns to the Sun

’Akhenaten’s Hymns to the Sun’ was
published in 1963, Arboga, Sweden.

If we read Akhenaten’s hymns to Aton, we
find primarily that Akhenaten calls himself
Aton, thus the hymns are written to himself.
The neutron sun Aton has the serpent as a
symbol, the Serpent Deity. Very skilful
tactics by Akhenaten.

Besides, the actual contents of the hymns are
at a high scientific level with simple ex-
pressions. We can also see from the hymns
that Eyes and other people involved knew
about Akhenaten’s secrets.

Akhenaten was a unique pharaoh. His
scientific knowledge was superior compared
to that of other pharaohs. He created a
totally new religion based on science. Also
his timing was excellent. Akhenaten was a
superior pharaoh in Egypt.

Akhetaten (Horizon of Aton) was built to the honour of the neutron star
Aton. The ship reminds me of Peter’s fishing ship in Christianity.

Carl Larsson is behind the illustrations above, 1963. My personal question
is: Who inspired him when he illustrated Akhenaten’s hymns to the sun?
Picture 1depicts Akhenaten and Nefertiti, between them is a spiral galaxy,
the Milky Way. The neutron sun Aton as a comet is depicted together with
Nefertiti. The comet has a female shape. Number 2 depicts the sun Aton
when it rises above the horizon as does number 3 and the wish of high
priest Eyes that Akhenaten was to dominate the whole galaxy. The
illustrations correspond highly to the hymns.

1

2

The City of Akhetaten

3
21



Akhenaten ruled for around 18 years. During later years he took very little interest in domestic affairs in Egypt.
Briefly, this is how history remembers him: Akhenaten became a founder of religion, prophet, pharaoh and God. He
was a great poet, this broken-down and degenerated little dreamer, the greatest poet known in ancient times. God
was God and was represented only by the picture of His visible natural manifesto, the sun disc (the neutron sun)
equipped with arms which ended in blessing and protective hands. The two symbols of God were the royal sign
Uraeus (a serpent symbol) which signified the single royal, approved faith, and the sign of Life, ankh. Akhenaten
did not approve of any embellished representations of himself, he was to be described as lamentable as he was. His
forefathers had allowed themselves to be portrayed as victors in battles, Akhenaten was instead portrayed as the
prophet king, as a sacrificing priest of Aton, as a happy family father together with his family, as a donor of gifts to
his followers with the queen by his side.

Akhenaten’s view on Man and Life: Despite the fact that divinity was the most important issue for Akhenaten, he
chose to concentrate on Life and Man. We can read this about him: His forefathers had all been living gods, but
Akhenaten came down to Earth and became a human being among other human beings. This reminds me of
Christianity’s god who became a human being in Jesus Christ by Virgin Maria. Here we have a common
denominator between Akhenaten and Jesus Christ. History repeats itself, we say.

Akhenaten had a working religion based on the deity Aton. He managed to cut the power of the priesthood by half.
Less power to the priests, but those who still were in power were competent and loyal to Akhenaten and the sun disc
Aton. Simultaneously the political and military power of the realm diminished during the five last years of his reign.
Akhenaten and his spouse Nefertiti seem to have been totally occupied with religious and cultural issues and, as a
pharaoh, he neglected politics. The Hittites of Asia Minor started to expand during this period and they conquered
some of Egypt’s possessions in the Near East without his intervention. The people were oppressed by the
bureaucrats and the new religion was commonly hated. The dissatisfaction with the rulers of the realm started to
spread even faster. They all believed that he neglected Egypt for religious reasons. And they were right. At that time,
Akhenaten had started to lay the foundation of the new religion, connected to the foundation of the new state of
Israel.



All signs indicate that Akhenaten disappeared without a trace in a spaceship, from his home, after a reign of about
18 years. He had simply been declared dead without any explanation. In the Valley of the Kings, almost all rulers
of the New Kingdom had their tombs established. The only exception is Akhenaten. One tomb, #55, in the Valley
of the Kings, contained a royal mummy from the Amarna period, but the identity of the deceased has never been
confirmed. Another royal tomb was investigated in Amarna, where parts of crushed sarcophagi were found. So far,
nobody has managed to find the tomb of Akhenaten. Most scientists today are of the opinion that Akhenaten
during his last years ruled in coalition with a female relative, probably Nefertiti. She ruled during a very short
period after Akhenaten’s disappearance. It seems to be the case that Akhenaten knew about his ascension in a
spaceship well in advance and let his wife Nefertiti take over for a while.

According to my knowledge and my insight into the secret world, and according to all preserved material about
Akhenaten, I see him more and more as the God who planned for and led Israel out of Egypt, via Moses. (The
name Moses is known from Pharaoh Thut Mose I, suggesting the name Moses in Dynasty 18.) Ergo, a well
planned project: found a state and a religion based on science connected to the return of the neutron star Aton at
the same time as climate change-related natural catastrophes took place around the globe. A unique event. His new
name was: “I am the God of Abraham, and the God of Isaac, and the God of Jacob.”

As we all know, Moses and Aaron were Levites and
descended from Jacob’s third son Levi, according to
the Bible. Thus, Moses and his brother had the
assignment to guide the Israelis out of  Egypt.

Moses with his serpent staffMoses with his serpent staff

After Aton had orbited the sun for about 1,000 years,
the next big event took place. Around 1336 B.C,
Akhenaten ascended and simultaneously the exodus
from Egypt via Moses and Aaron and the foundation of
Israel, newly named Israel’s God, took place. At that
time extensive natural catastrophes occurred. Because
of this, Moses and the people of Israel had to go round
Mount Sinai for about 40 years.

It seems to be the case that Akhenaten knew in advance that the worship of Aton would last during a short period of time. At the
end of his reign, the pressure on his royal family was enormous. He set his hopes on the new religion and better development. The
end of Aton worship came during the short reign of Tutankhamun. The boy, the Young Lion and his environment put a stop to
Aton’s religion which made it more difficult to Akhenaten/God of Israel to guide the Israelis out of the country. Moses and Aaron
had many problems to solve. Besides, the Egyptians were punished because of the shift from worshipping Aton to worshipping
Amun. God of Israel then had a spaceship at his disposal. Through this, he could muster some power which he could use against
Egypt. Moses about God and his spaceship, Exodus 19:16-20: ”And it came to pass on the third day in the morning, that there
were thunders and lightnings and a thick cloud upon the mount, and the voice of the trumpet exceeding loud, so that all the people
who were in the camp trembled. And Moses brought forth the people out of the camp to meet with God, and they stood at the
nether part of the mount. And Mount Sinai was altogether in smoke, because the LORD descended upon it in fire; and the smoke
thereof ascended as the smoke of a furnace, and the whole mount quaked greatly. And when the voice of the trumpet sounded long
and waxed louder and louder, Moses spoke, and God answered him by a voice.
And the LORD came down upon Mount Sinai, on the top of the mount; and the LORD called Moses up to the top of the mount,
and Moses went up.”

The Golden Bull and Israelis:
”This is our God, who
brought us  out of Egypt!”

The Golden Bull Joseph.
”This is our God, who
brought us out of Egypt!”

 Joseph



There are more stories about how God descended onto Mount Sinai: Exodus 20: 18-23:  ”And all the people saw the
thunderings and the lightnings, and the noise of the trumpet and the mountain smoking; and when the people saw it, they
removed and stood afar off. And they said unto Moses, "Speak thou with us and we will hear; but let not God speak with us,
lest we die." And Moses said unto the people, "Fear not; for God has come to test you, and that His fear may be before your
faces, that ye sin not." And the people stood afar off, and Moses drew near unto the thick darkness where God was. And the
LORD said unto Moses, "Thus thou shalt say unto the children of Israel: `Ye have seen that I have talked with you from
heaven. Ye shall not make with Me gods of silver, neither shall ye make unto you gods of gold.”  We all know what has
happened historically to Israel since then. One issue is quite clear: The people of Israel were very afraid of the LORD. Now I
will switch to the formation of the next religion, i.e. Christianity.

Israel’s God

Abraham’s God,
Isaac’s God and
Jacob’s God

Kingdom of Judah
       922-587
    Jerusalem

Kingdom of Israel
       922-721
       Samaria

     King Saul
    1047-1007
 Benjamin lineage

King David
 1007-967
 Judah lineage

     Judah lineage
Benjamin lineage

Reuben lineage, Levi lineage, Joseph
lineage, Zebulun lineage,, Gad lineage,
Naphtali lineage, Asher lineage,,
Issachar lineage, Dan lineage, Simeon
lineage

Israel and its three kings
          1047-922 B.C.

Kings of Judah Israel’s kings

Rehoboam, 922-915 Jeroboam I, 922-901

Abija, 915-913 Nadab, 901-900

Asa, 913-873

Jeoshaphat, 873-849

Baasha, 900-877

Elah, 877-876

King Salomon
 967-922
  Judah lineage

Israel



Jehoram, 849-842 Ahazia, 842 Ahab, 869-850 Omri, 876-869

Joash, 837-800 Athaliah, 842-837 Ahasiah, 850-849 Jehoram, 849-842

Amazia, 800-783 Azariah, 783-742 Jehu, 842-815 Jehoahas, 815-801

Jotham, 783-735 Ahaz, 735-715 Jehoash, 801-786 Jeroboam II, 786-746

Hezekiah, 715-687 Manasseh, 687-642
Menahem, 745-738

Zachariah, 746-745



Amon, 642-640 Josiah, 640-609 Pekahia, 738-737 Pekah, 737-732

Jehoiakim, 609-598 Jehoiachin, 598-597 Hoshea, 732-721

Zedekiah, 597-587
Jerusalem was defeated 587 B.C.

Samaria was defeated 721 B.C.

The Lion of Judah. According to the Bible and Revelation.
The Kingdom of Judah and its Messiah, the worldly
and Davidian Messiah, ”The Lion of Judah”, a
reincarnation of King David.
He was married to Mary of Magdala and had one
son, one daughter and, according to Talmud, he had
five disciples. He studied in India, e.g. medicine.
Planet: Mars and the Sun.
Biological mother: Jewess Miriam; born in
Bethlehem, Judea, Palestine.

The Lamb.  According to the Gospel and Revelation.
The Kingdom of Israel and its Messiah, a
Levite priest-like Messiah according to the
ecclesiastical order of Aaron and Melchizedek,
“Lamb of God.” He was not married and had
twelve disciples according to the Gospel.
Studied in Egypt, e.g. magic. Planet: Venus and
Nemesis
Biological mother: Queen Helena of Adiabene;
born in Armenia.

The original Israel
was divided into two
parts, the Kingdom of
Judah and the
Kingdom of Israel.
Each kingdom was
entitled to send one
Messiah.The Dead
Sea Scrolls also tell
this story.

Joseph Jr, born in Bethlehem
Izates II/Jesus, born in Armenia

Fatherhood in Babylon
during Daniel, in which the
Lord as well as the lion took
part. More info at the link
Hanging Gardens of Baby-
lon and Ancient Persia.

The lion (Marduk) was a
symbol of the town of
Babylon. The woman be-
tween the paws symbolizes
the enemies of Babylon.



                  What happened in Jerusalem at the time?
                                            The greatest mystery ever

Jerusalem is known as the city of David. What happened to David at the time?
The world had been waiting for two Messiahs, also according to the Dead Sea Scrolls. One of them was expected to come from
the Kingdom of Judah, the worldly and Davidian Messiah. The other one was to come from the Kingdom of Israel, the Levite
and priest-like Messiah according to the ecclesiastical order of Aaron and Melchizedek. But, in the end, there would be only one
Messiah. In other words: They both were entitled to call themselves Messiah.
The worldly and Davidian Messiah was born in Bethlehem by Jewess Mary and was named Joseph Jr, son of Mary. The other
Messiah was born by Queen Helena of Adiabene, in Armenia. Secretly, she was the daughter of Julius Caesar and Caesar’s last
wife was pregnant with Helena when he was killed in 44. Helena was born the same year in which his father passed away.
According to Josephus Helena was the sister of Monobaz I, also known as Bazeus. Were Monobaz I and Bazeus really the same
person? What we can see is that Monobaz I had many other children (sons, daughters) with other wives and Helena also gave
birth to sons and daughters, e.g. Monobaz II/Jacob, Simon, Judas, Yusef, and Izates II/Jesus. When all these people were born,
there was nobody called Jesus, the name entered the picture later on. The Talmud is a reliable source where we can clearly see
that we have two Messiahs. We can for example read about the origin of Jesus (Toledot Yeshu) in Shabbat p 104b, Sanhedrin pp
67a and 107b (cause), Great Council pp 67a and 43a.Who is who? From the dialogues it is obvious that one of them was the son
of Mary/Miriam from Nazareth and the other one was son of Pandera. Who do we find behind the name Pandera? The
priesthood was divided, some supported Mary’s son, some Pandera’s son. Pandera’s son was sent to Egypt to learn magic. The
name Jesus also appears and seems to be connected to Nazareth. According to the Talmud, this Jesus secretly murdered innocent
people and deceived Israel. He was crucified on a Good Friday and was arrested 40 days earlier. In ‘Toledot Yeshu’ we can read
about Jesus and Empress/Queen Helena of Adiabene and her history. Helena fought hard to save Jesus from being crucified. One
of Helena’s sons was Izates II, king of Adiabene and this Izates II was called the ‘Only-Begotten Son.’ Helena and her family
had earlier on converted into Judaism and therefore Izates II was also King of Judah. The only-begotten son can be connected to
the carpenter Joseph’s only son, the Son of Man and also to God’s son. It seems to be the case that Izates II officially had a royal
role in Jerusalem and simultaneously, using the name Jesus, a Messiah role in Palestine, in a narrow circle. We can also read in
the Talmud that the Jewess Mary/Miriam visited the Angel of Death, i.e. received guidance from him, Shabbat p 104b. A short
summary: It was the son, named Jesus, of Jewess Mary who was crucified (also his five disciples), while Helena’s son Izates II
was released from the crucifixion. The Jewess Mary’s son was born in Bethlehem, was named Joseph Jr, and was a reincarnation
of King David. Thus, it was in fact David who then was crucified.

So, two Messiahs entered the world stage, one was the Lion, the other was the Lamb. The Lion was born in Bethlehem by the
Jewess Mary and was named Joseph Jr, a reincarnation of David. The other one was the Lamb (the new name of the Lord)
and was named Izates II, a reincarnation of the God of Israel. More information on the actions of Herod connected to the
birth of the Lion, see the link “Tutankhamun”, p 9.

  Nebuchadnezzar II, Herod the Great
A reincarnation of Nebuchadnezzar II
More info at ”The Hanging Gardens of
Babylon”

After the escape from Egypt, the carpenter Joseph, the boy Joseph Jr and Mary returned
to Nazareth, where Joseph had a house. Joseph, who among other jobs worked as a
constructor, still had his family in Armenia. His secret name was ‘Fig Tree’ and he
produced wine solely from figs. The Jewess worked as a hairdresser. More info, see the
link “Protector of the Architects”. Joseph Jr grew up in Nazareth. When he was
twelve he travelled to India with a relative or acquaintance to study medicine. Years
passed by and they woke up also in the royal family of Adiabene. The royal family
Adiabene practiced a basic religion with roots back to Zoroaster. Helena and her family
had converted to Judaism. The reason for this conversion was the son Izates II’s
Messiah assignment.
Izates II married Symmacho of Characene and in that marriage he had an unknown
daughter.



The Jewess Mary missed her son Joseph Jr, he left emptiness behind. Joseph and Mary separated, she moved away from him but
remained in Nazareth. To be able to start his Messiah assignment all over Palestine, king Izates II needed help, but not just any
kind of help. I mentioned that the Jewess met with the Angel of Death, and the latter also knew Queen Helena. Izates II received
a new name, Jesus, which he used for his Messiah assignment in Palestine, but in a narrow circle. Through the Angel of Death
the Jewess met this Jesus and something similar to motherhood arose between Mary and Jesus (Eve as Mary and the serpent as
Jesus). The Jewess was of the opinion that her biological son Joseph Jr would never come back from India, so she could accept
Jesus as her own, new son. This, of course, took place in total secrecy. In this way, Jesus had two roles to play, one as King
Izates II and one as the messenger of Jesus Christ. In secrecy, Symmacho helped Jesus outside the Adiabene royal family, i.e. in
the whole of Palestine and his mother Helena had excellent contacts with people in power, including the priesthood. At the
beginning, carpenter Joseph did not know that Mary had a new son who was called Jesus. Joseph had at the time his Armenian
family with him and his biological only son, Tomas who helped him in his construction business. Jesus had 12 disciples, four of
them were his brothers and eight others joined them later. But these eight additions had no idea that Jesus played a double game,
at least not in the beginning. The fisherman Peter, who was Joseph Jr’s biological father was the oldest, he and his brother
Andrew knew who Jesus was. Later on Zebedee’s sons James and John knew about Jesus’s double game. All twelve disciples
were married and had families. Finance was arranged by the Adiabene royal family. It was probably Judas, brother of Jesus, who
handled the money and distributed it among the disciples.

The first problem occurred when John started to preach that the Kingdom of Heaven was close. He attracted lots of people. John
was a very good orator and possessed top-level knowledge. John’s appearances disturbed Jesus’s activities. When John noticed
that Jesus’s friends among the powerful were there to find out what he was talking about, John told them: “But when he saw
many of the Pharisees and Sadducees coming to his baptism, he said unto them, "O generation of vipers, who hath warned you to
flee from the wrath to come?” (Matthew 3:7) This short quotation tells us that John knew the Levites who were close to and even
at the centre of Jesus’s activities.

The reason for arresting John: Matthew writes about Herod in Matthew 14:1-4: “At that time Herod the tetrarch heard of the
fame of Jesus and said unto his servants, "This is John the Baptist. He is risen from the dead, and therefore mighty works show
forth themselves in him. For Herod had laid hold on John, and bound him and put him in prison for the sake of Herodias, his
brother Philip's wife. For John said unto him, "It is not lawful for thee to have her.” Here, Matthew discloses that John’s arrest
was directly connected to Jesus, since he had not met Herod Philip and his wife Herodias in the desert. It was Jesus and his
disciples who visited John, not the Herod royal family. There was certainly a lively discussion between John and Jesus. Among
other things, Jesus told John that he was a son of the Jewess Mary and he probably mentioned that he was Messiah. But John
knew Izates II who was, firstly, not Jewish, and, secondly, the son of Helena. John pointed out that it was not legal two have two
mothers and thereby playing a double game.
The Earthly Adam as John and the Serpent as Jesus met again, but this time John was not fooled. Thereafter, Helena got in touch
with Herod who arrested and killed John to remove him. The Dead Sea Scrolls also point at John as being Messiah. John’s father
Zechariah was also killed by the Angel of Death when John was born.

The next problem loomed large over the Adiabene royal family when Joseph Jr unexpectedly returned from India after 20-25
years. His mother Mary had taken care of another son instead of him, he had no mother any more. He then met the Jewess Mary
Magdala and married her, in the town of Cana. The wedding of Cana is also mentioned in the Gospel of John. Mary had a
vineyard in Cana, inherited from her parents. Joseph Jr and Mary were always fully occupied. In their marriage they had a son
named Judas/John and a daughter. Joseph was both a professional wine-grower and a wine-drinker. For him there was also a
Messiah assignment, but no religion. He built a net of contacts all over Palestine and had five disciples, probably his closest or
best friends. He himself was number six as a symbol of David’s six-pointed star. One of the disciples was Benjamin/Saul and the
other was Solomon, reincarnation applied, of course. All his disciples were married and had families. Sufficient income came
from the vineyard and bartering. Joseph Jr and his disciples were also often away from home to herald the message among
people. They met people all over Palestine, some of them were sick. Joseph cured them with his medical knowledge.

An interesting text in the Gospel of John is this: John 4:5-9: “Then came He to a city of Samaria, which is called Sychar, near to
the parcel of ground that Jacob gave to his son Joseph. Now Jacob's well was there. Jesus therefore, being wearied with His
journey, sat thus by the well; and it was about the sixth hour. There came a woman of Samaria to draw water. Jesus said unto
her, "Give Me to drink." (For His disciples had gone away unto the city to buy meat.) Then said the woman of Samaria unto
Him, "How is it that thou, being a Jew, askest a drink of me, who am a woman of Samaria?" For the Jews have no dealings with
the Samaritans.” In this short text we can clearly see that the man who sat down by the well was a Jew. Since Jesus was not a
Jew, he was not there. John reveals that a Jew was sitting there and it must have been Joseph Jr, Jewess Mary’s biological son.

John’s/Earthly
Adam’s fight
against the viper:
Matthew.3:7,



The Mystery of the Cross

                                   The Mystery of the Fig Tree

The carpenter/jack of all trades Joseph’s secret name was ”Fig Tree”, connected to the cosmic tree of life. Jesus and his
disciples visited various towns in Palestine, also Nazareth. We find one of those visits in Matthew. When the people caught
sight of Jesus, they said: “Is not this the carpenter's son? Is not his mother called Mary and his brethren James and Joseph, and
Simon and Judas? And his sisters, are they not all with us? From whence then hath this man all these things?" And they were
offended at Him. But Jesus said unto them, "A prophet is not without honor, save in his own country and in his own house."
And He did not many mighty works there, because of their unbelief.” (Matthew 13:55-58)

What is disclosed by Matthew here? Yes, the duplicity of Jesus. Firstly, the Jewess Mary gave birth to only one son, Joseph Jr
who was carpenter Joseph’s stepson. Secondly, Joseph had a family branch via Julius Caesar in the Adiabene royal family
where Helena (Caesar’s daughter) was the mother of Jesus, James, Simon, Yusuf, Judas, some daughters and they all looked
like Joseph. Thirdly, Helena’s daughter lived with the Jewess Mary, which means she took active part in Jesus’s false games.
Fourthly, we can clearly see that all Helena’s sons belonged to carpenter Joseph’s fatherhood, that wealth, royalty and power
did not matter, they wanted to be where they could find Life. The disciples did not know about this and wondered about how
Jesus could have got into that situation. Then Jesus confessed that a prophet is not despised but in his home town (in Armenia)
and in his own house (the Adiabene royal family). In other words: he admitted that he had nothing to do with Nazareth and that
he was angry with his disciples. Since Jesus was not a Jew it is not likely that he ever taught in the Nazareth synagogue. How
did he introduce himself to the Jews in their synagogue?

Simultaneously people who knew Joseph Jr pointed out to him that he could not be the son of carpenter Joseph. He did not
look like Joseph, instead he resembled fisherman Peter who was Jewess Mary’s brother-in-law. Carpenter Joseph, Tomas’s
father, over and over again told people around him, even outside Nazareth, that he had nothing to do with Jesus and his
brothers and sisters. He simply did not know them, he had never seen them. Such was the situation for Joseph and his family
while he worked with his son in the Nazareth region.

Later on in life Joseph and his family moved from Nazareth to Bethany, outside Jerusalem. He continued to disavow
Jesus/Izates II and his fatherhood. According to the Gospels of Matthew, Mark and Luke Jesus killed the Fig Tree. Why? The
Fig Tree was a symbol of carpenter Joseph, it was not a common fig tree Jesus killed. According to the Gospel he killed and
cursed Joseph because the latter denied his fatherhood, i.e. he was not of fruit of the Fig Tree, and without Joseph
acknowledging his fatherhood, Jesus is nothing. According to Revelation, Jesus then officially received the title of Death.
Rev.1:18.

The fig tree was a symbol of
carpenter Joseph.

Ficus carica

The small community Bethany, where Joseph was
killed by Jesus, symbolically, as a fig tree. Joseph had a
secret name, ”Fig Tree” (Tree of Life). According to
the Gospels Jesus killed and cursed the Fig Tree. Mark
and Matthew describe the killing symbolically, Luke
describes is in the form of a parable.

Jesus/Izates II, believed that with power, money,
violence, terror and fraud it was possible to gain
life and fatherhood outside the family and royal
circles. He pretended to be God’s son, the only-
begotten son, Son of Man, Mary’s son, Father’s
Son, and David’s son, but never said whose son he
really was.

According to the Talmud Jesus secretly killed innocent people and mislead Israel. Since he was close to the people in power, he
believed his defence was good for Israel. Jesus was arrested and was put in prison. At the same time, according to the Gospel, a
man called Barabbas was in prison. This Barabbas was a murderer and revolutionary and was better known as ‘Father’s Son’.
Were Jesus and Barabbas one and the same person? That seems to be the case.

Who was Crucified?

Bethany



Joseph Jr
JesusPontius Pilate and the viper on the coins from his time in

office, the viper as a serpent galaxy. Pilate let them both go.

    Paphos bar Yehudah             Yehosef bar Paphos
     Fisherman Peter     Joseph  Jr,stepson of Joseph
who renounced his son in the G reat Council.

Hannas/Annas and Caiaphas
Jesus/Izates II              Queen Helena
who saved her son from crucifixion via
her contacts in the Great Council

According to the Talmud Jesus secretly killed innocent people. According to the Gospel, a man named Barabbas was in prison
for murder. Izates II was known as a King, Jesus was known as a founder of religion/Messiah in a narrow circle in Palestine.
Jesus and Barabbas were probably one and the same person, playing the same part. Who was the man who was arrested almost at
the same time as Barabbas? Was he a Jew? The one arrested was Joseph Jr, son of Jewess Mary. Pilate released both of them,
but later high priest Caiaphas (descendant of Levi) sentenced Joseph Jr to crucifixion. The Talmud tells us in Toledot Yeshu that
Helena saved Jesus from crucifixion via her contacts. To get some clarity, I look back at the times of King David to have a closer
look at what he then wrote about himself in the future, he saw himself suffering on the cross.

Psalm 22, The Glory and Suffering of Messiah. For the choir director; upon Aijeleth Hashshahar, a
psalm of David.
Psalm 22 12-19, ”Be not far from Me, for trouble is near; for there is none to help. Many bulls have
compassed Me about; strong bulls of Bashan have beset Me round. They gaped at Me with their
mouths, as a ravening and a roaring lion. I am poured out like water, and all My bones are out of joint;
My heart is like wax; it is melted in the midst of My body. My strength is dried up like a potsherd, and
My tongue cleaveth to My jaws; and Thou hast brought Me into the dust of death. For dogs have
surrounded Me; the assembly of the wicked have enclosed Me; they pierced My hands and My feet.”
(Matthew 27:31, Mark 15:20, Lukas 23:33, John19:18). “ I can count all My bones; they look and
stare upon Me. They part My garments among them, and cast lots upon My vesture” (Matthew 27:35,
Mark 15:24, Lukas 23:34, John 19:23) (David’s song was probably written to the father of the Gods)

David, the future Messiah
and his looming suf-
ferings.

According to the sources above, Joseph Jr was born in Bethlehem by Jewess Mary, thus a reincarnation of David. Joseph Jr was
the one who went through suffering and crucifixion. But why? What was the reason for his execution? Jesus killed the carpenter
Joseph because he denied his fatherhood of Jesus, but I have a strong feeling that he also killed Jewess Mary and other unknown
persons. In order to avoid Jesus’s death, his mother Helena had to negotiate her son out of crucifixion with Levite priest
Caiaphas connected to procedures in the Great Council. The proposal to instead crucify Mary’s son probably came from Helena.
However, during the procedures it turned out that carpenter Joseph was not Joseph Jr’s biological father. His father was Paphos
bar Yehudah, in the Gospel known as fisherman Peter, who denied his fatherhood before the Great Council. A change of
Messiahs was thus carried out, but the problem was that the two Messiahs did not resemble each other, they both had different
characters and looks. Jesus was supposed to have looked like Joseph Jr and not and not carpenter Joseph. Even Tomas supported
Joseph Jr in the Great Council, since his father’s death was processed there. Helena’s influence over the priesthood was
substantial, Joseph Jr’s defense against the arguments of the people in power was weak. Joseph Jr was crucified by the
priesthood, he died on the cross, then his body was buried and cremated. After three days it was time for Jesus to announce
Resurrection. But nobody believed it, not even his brothers and disciples, because they all knew it was Jewess Mary’s son,
Joseph Jr who was crucified and Jesus was never near the cross. Enough about the downfall of Jesus and the murder of Joseph.

The Mystery of the Cross



There is a notation of a secret meeting, where, among others, Jesus, James and an unknown servant to the high priest were
present. The following took place: "And when the Lord had given the linen cloth to the servant of the priest, he went to James
and appeared to him. For James had sworn that he would not eat bread from that hour in which he had drunk the cup of the
Lord until he should see him risen from among them that sleep. And shortly thereafter the Lord said: Bring a table and bread!
And immediately it added: he took the bread, blessed it and brake it and gave it to James the Just and said to him: My
brother, eat thy bread, for the Son of man is risen from among them that sleep.” (Gospel of the Hebrews.)

It is strange that Jesus did not call himself Son of God or son of Helena, but the called himself Son of Man despite the fact
that he killed Joseph. He knew that carpenter Joseph was a human being and that Tomas was his only son. In other words:
Tomas was the Son of Man, Joseph’s heir, i.e. Jesus was not a fruit of the Fig Tree. But Joseph Jr as the Angel of Death,
away from his mother Mary was a lion in human shroud and not a human being, thus Jesus had no right to name himself Son
of Man. Joseph Jr’s second name was Nazoraios or Nazarenous.

According to the Gospels of Matthew (26:31-32) and Mark  (14:27-28) Jesus said to them: "All ye shall be offended because
of Me this night; for it is written: `I will smite the Shepherd, and the sheep of the flock shall be scattered abroad.'” Jesus knew
that it would not be easy to carry out an exchange of Messiahs, i.e. to crucify the Jew Joseph Jr and then take part in the game
instead of him as if he had risen from the dead, and show himself to people, despite his lack of resemblance to the man who
was crucified. ”But after I am risen, I will go before you into Galilee.” He knew in advance that cheating, execution and fraud
would exist connected to Resurrection. What do you expect from a serpent? His words then are also valid at the End of Time,
in other words: He will become an obstacle, he will “smite the shepherd the sheep of the flock shall be scattered abroad”
again.

The Father is crucified with his head down.
(Ref. to Inanna’s visit to the underworld, the
interior of the Earth) The Son is crucified Jesus, the carrier of the cross

korsbärande

Paphos bar
Yehudah

Yehosef bar Paphos
Joseph’s stepson

Izates II bar Monobaz I
       Jesus/Barabbas

The Resurrection was part of Jesus’s new religion, later named Christianity. There was no Resurrection, The crucifixion of
Joseph Jr is a fact, he died on the cross, was buried and then his body was cremated. Jesus was as far away from the cross as the
planet Pluto is from our Sun. The whole new religion failed from the start. Because of this Jesus postponed his ascension to
around 550 days after the execution of Joseph Jr. During that period he had time enough to plan how to come to terms with the
failure of the religion and go on.

Even Jesus knew what the End will look like and how the new religion Christianity can be abolished. It was his decision to take
fisherman Peter to Rome, crucify him with his head down and then build the Roman church on top of his grave. Peter on the
cross showed (symbolically) where the church was heading, towards the End of Time. A contemporary source is Gnosticism
(knowledge) or the Gnostic movement, founded by Tomas, carpenter Joseph’s biological son. Gnosticism had nothing to do with
the religion. The élite joined this movement, people like Jesus, his brothers and his disciples. More info at the link “The
Protector of the Architects.” Let me verify everything I have written so far, using Jesus’s own words.

Ezekiel.32:1-10

From the texts we can clearly see that the event took place in Jerusalem a short time after Resurrection.
High priest at the time was the Levite/Israeli Caiaphas and Jesus knew personally his inner circle. On
the linen cloth Jesus handed to the high priest’s servant there was probably an impression of his face.
This cloth would probably correspond to the Veil of Veronica connected to Jewish Joseph Jr’s
crucifixion before Easter celebrations, a proof that Jesus and nobody else died on the cross. The fact
that James as a sceptic (not Tomas) came to the meeting was natural, since he became the honest
representative for Jesus, because Jesus shared the bread with James and he drank from Jesus’s chalice.
But we cannot read anywhere that Jesus and James were wine drinkers or that the chalice contained
wine. But we can clearly see that Jesus and James entered into an alliance about all Jesus’s secrets.
(Bread equals deed)



Gospel of Tomas
Judas Tomas Didymus

The first thing to correct in the headline above is to remove the name of Tomas, since Judas Tomas Didymus never existed. As
I have already mentioned, Tomas was the biological son of the jack-of-all-trades Joseph, Judas was Jesus’s elder brother and
was the one who wrote this gospel together with his younger brother Jesus. Tomas founded Gnosticism on a scientific basis,
but did never write a gospel about Jesus.

Gospel of Judas
These are the secret words from the living Jesus, written by Judas, Jesus’s elder brother.

10, Yeshua says: “I have cast fire upon the world-system—and behold, I guard it until it is ablaze.” - At the end, a terrible war will
start because of Jesus.

16, Yeshua says: “People perhaps think that I have come to cast peace upon the world, and they do not know that I have come to
cast conflicts upon the earth—fire, sword, war. For there shall be five in a house—three shall be against two and two against three,
the father against the son and the son against the father. And they shall stand as solitaries.” – Here, Jesus talks about his proper role,
the role of death, Rev. 1:17-18 and 6:8. My family had four members: father, mother, son and daughter. Jesus came into my family
as a fifth member, like a thief in the night assisted by evil powers and coiled himself round my father in connection with a paternity
issue in the 70s. He is not of the human blood type 0. More info at the link “Mayas-Incas-Aztecs and Their Secrets” in which he tries
to become human again, but he remains a serpent. His goal is to spread division in each and every family on this planet. “Dark
Matter and its Existence”, pp 13-22.

40, Yeshua says: “A vine has been planted without the Father—and (as) it is not vigorous, it shall be pulled up by its roots and
destroyed” – Here Jesus speaks about the Lion, the worldly and Davidian Messiah, “The Lion of Judah”, Joseph Jr who was not
carpenter Joseph’s biological son, and now, at the End of Time, Tibor E, who was not my father’s, Tibor Kemény, biological son.
Also, Joseph had nothing to do with Jesus, Jesus was planted, but neither by Joseph nor now, at the End of Time, by my father Tibor
Kemény in the paternity issue of the 1970s. Here, Tibor E, a twelve-year-old, was uprooted because people believed that he was the
biological son of my father. He was killed and replaced by this Jesus who has a different name today. More info at the link
”Tutankhamun”.   

55, Yeshua says: “Whoever does not hate his father and his mother, shall not be able to become a Disciple to me. And whoever does
not hate his brothers and his sisters, and take up his own cross in my way, shall not be made worthy of me.” – Here Jesus reveals that
he is against family life, that all people on Earth should worship only him and that they all are to carry their cross the way he does, he
is a cross-bearer. To carry a cross is not a big deal, dying on a cross is different. Jesus does not say that he died on the cross, he
carries it.

101, Yeshua says: “Whoever does not hate his father and his mother in my way, shall not be able to become a Disciple to me. And
whoever does [not] love his [Father] and his Mother in my way, shall not be able to become a [Disciple to] me. For my mother [bore
my body], yet [my] True [Mother] gave me the life.” – Here, Jesus reveals the most important issue of all, he hates his own true
mother who gave him life. He is not talking about Jewess Mary but about his real mother, Queen Helena. History has repeated itself
and the same thing happened to my father and his paternity issue in the 70s, Jewess Mary was not his biological mother.

114, Shimon Kefa says to them: “Let Mariam depart from among us, for women are not worthy of the life.” – He had problems
with Jewess Mary because of his extra-marital child, Joseph Jr. He was married to Mary’s sister. Yeshua says: “Behold, I myself
shall inspire her so that I make her male, in order that she also shall become a living spirit like you males. For every female who
becomes male, shall enter the Sovereignty of the Heavens.” – Making a man out of a woman is to punish Jesus, because Mary has a
child with the wrong man, which led to the downfall of Jesus. “Heaven” is a relative term, the Realm of Death can also be named
Heaven.

99, The Disciples say to him: “Thy brothers and thy mother are standing outside.” He says to them: “Those here who do the will of
my Father—these are my Brothers and my Mother. It is they who shall enter the Sovereignty of my Father.” – One more disclosure
of Jesus’s double games. Carpenter Joseph had one son, Tomas, his only son. Jewess Mary had given birth to only one son, Joseph
Jr. Jesus’s brothers were James, Simon, Judas and Yusuf of the royal family of Adiabene. His mother was Helena and his father
probably Monobaz I, his realm is unknown to me.

30, Yeshua says: “Where there are three gods, they are {godless. But where there is only one, I say that} I myself am with him.”   -
Here he speaks symbolically about the great mountain which consists of a lion, a bull, a lamb, and a serpent. The lamb would be the
victor. More info at the link ”National Coat of Arms and Science”, p 16.

11, Yeshua says: “This sky shall be made to pass away, and the one above it shall be made to pass away. And the dead are not alive,
and the living shall not die.” – More info at the links “The Secret of the Black Hole”, National Coat of Arms and Science” p 13,
“Dark Matter and its Existence” p 9, “The Riddle of Gravitation” p 4 and “The New Atom Model”.  “In the days when you
consumed the dead, you transformed it to life.” - When you eat meat on a daily basis, animals could be reincarnated into a human
body again. “When you come into the Light, what will you do? – I.e. when you find out what reality means, when you know
everything, what will you do not to panic? “On the day when you were united, you became divided—yet when you have become
divided, what will you do?”  - The final goal is to be neither man nor woman – and what do we do then?



7, Yeshua says: “Blest is the lion which the human eats—and the lion shall become human. And defiled is the human which the lion
eats—and the [human] shall become [lion].” – Even Jesus knew that Man can become an animal if we violate the laws of nature by, for
example, eating meat, but an animal cannot become a human being. Jesus’s final goal was to become a human being again. When we
leave our humanity behind and enter the world of the animals, we meet death. Jesus was aware of this. More info at “Dynasty 0 in
Ancient Egypt” and “Mayas-Incas-Aztecs” and their Secrets.”

60, “(They see) a Samaritan carrying a lamb, entering Judea. Yeshua says to them: (Why is) that-one (carrying) the lamb? They say to
him: So that he may kill it and eat it. He says to them: While it is alive he will not eat it, but only after he kills it and it becomes a
corpse. They say: Otherwise he will not be able to do it. He says to them: You yourselves, therefore—seek a place for yourselves in
repose, lest you become corpses and be eaten.”  - Here, Jesus reveals that his disciples were human animals and their destiny may
coincide with that of the lamb.

85, Yeshua says: “Adam came into existence from a great power and a great wealth, and (yet) he did not become worthy of you. For if
he had been worthy, [he would] not [have tasted] death.” – Here Jesus admits that the serpent indirectly lured Adam to death, that the
serpent was death itself and that his disciples were human animals.

13, Yeshua says to his Disciples: “Make a comparison to me, and tell me whom I resemble. Shimon Kefa says to him: Thou art like a
righteous angel. Matthew says to him: Thou art like a philosopher of the heart. Judas says to him: Oh Teacher, my mouth will not
contain saying whom thou art like Yeshua says: I'm not thy teacher, now that thou have drunk, thou have become inebriated from the
bubbling spring which I have measured out. And he takes him, he withdraws, he speaks three words to him. Now when Judas comes to
his comrades, they inquire of him: What did Yeshua say to thee? Judas says to them: If I tell you even one of the words which he
spoke to me, you will take up stones to cast at me—and fire will come from the stones to consume you .” - Jesus expected the disciples
to compare him to a human being (carpenter Joseph) and that he resembled Son of Man Tomas, son of Joseph, but that did not happen.
Judas, who was Jesus’s elder brother knew Jesus’s secrets and compared him to someone Jesus disliked. Jesus’s reaction came
instantly. There was obviously a crack between the brothers.

43, His Disciples say to him: Who art thou, that thou say these things to us? (Yeshua says to them:) From what I say to you, you do
not recognize who I be, but rather you have become as those Judeans—for they love the tree but hate its fruit, and they love the fruit
but hate the tree.” – The greatest mistake was made when the Angel of Death agreed with Jewess Mary about motherhood for Jesus.
Motherhood is one thing, but the problem was that Jesus took over the personal identity of Joseph Jr and behaved as if he was Joseph
Jr: born in Bethlehem by Jewess Mary in 29 B.C, growing up in Nazareth, stepson of Joseph, etc. That was his dilemma and because
of it the disciples asked him who he really was.

86, Yeshua says: “[The foxes have their dens] and the birds have their nests, but the Son of Mankind has no place to lay his head for
rest .”  - In the Great Council it became clear that Jesus probably had killed Joseph/the Fig Tree and that he secretly had killed some
others, that he misled Israel, according to the Talmud. He assumed Joseph Jr’s identity and led a double life. It was his mother Helena
who saved him from crucifixion and Joseph Jr was executed instead. Simultaneously the Great Council deprived him of his royal
privileges, suddenly he became an orphan. The royal family had to declare Izates II dead. Jesus gave this answer:  “From what I say to
you, you do not recognize who I be, but rather you have become as those Judeans—for they love the tree but hate its fruit, and they
love the fruit but hate the tree.” The disciples went on with their questions.

His Disciples say to him: “Twenty-four prophets  proclaimed in Israel, and they all spoke within thee. He says to them: You have
ignored the Living-One who is facing you, and you have spoken about the dead.”  – When the disciples asked how they should look
upon the Jewish prophets who, they believed, referred to the past when proclaiming his arrival, Jesus answered, painfully affected by
the fact they thought about something like that:  " You have ignored the Living-One who is facing you, and you have spoken about the
dead.” – The disciples’ questions were about the Messiah testimony which referred back to the past, like “/…/one like the Son of Man
came with the clouds of heaven/…/”  (Daniel 7:13) or “For He shall grow up before Him as a tender plant, and as a root out of a dry
ground. He hath no form nor comeliness, and when we shall see Him, there is no beauty that we should desire Him. He is despised and
rejected of men, a Man of sorrows, and acquainted with grief. And we hid as it were our faces from Him; He was despised, and we
esteemed Him not/…/” (Isaiah 53:2-3). - Jesus sharply rejected the disciples’ question because it basically did not belong to the
disciples but to the unfamiliar view within Judaism that expected a deceased Messiah. Jesus’s disappointment came from the fact that
his disciples, in spite of everything he had told them and done, still not had understood that this question was meaningless, because he
was among them, alive. But the disciples maintained that the prophets in their prophecies of his arrival, had indicated a dead Messiah.
Jesus’s answer to this was heard more or less like this: ”You worry about the dead because we know prophecies of a dead; as if one of
the old Prophets is revived in me. You turn to such a dead and thereby You have ignored the Living-One who is facing you.”- In this
answer Jesus rejects his identity as a dead prophet. What comes out of the short gnostic dialogues above is that Jesus’s disciples could
not understand why Jesus assumed the identity of the crucified Jewish prophet and why he claimed resurrection from the dead when he
had never been crucified. When Jesus noticed that even the disciples in the secret circle around him knew about the change of
identities, he rejected his identity with the Jewish prophet. Therefore he said, that he had nowhere where he could rest his head.



It was Tomas who wrote down his father Joseph’s (Son of Man) paternity issue connected to the Jewish prophet Joseph Jr and
the Israelite/Ephraimite Jesus. He also described the structure of Universe and all its secrets connected to the invisible Father of
Universe. He also made notations in a book in many copies about John/Immanuel by the Jordan Rift Valley. This book was
called ”Book of Secret Scriptures” or ”The Book of the Living” by the writer Tomas.
For some reason, also Judas studied the book written by Tomas. Judas re-edited the whole book to the advantage of his younger
brother Jesus and put him in focus. It was he who first disclosed that his brother Jesus was a hybrid. From ’Evangelium
Veritatis’ we can fairly clearly see that Judas’s brother Jesus appeared with this book, in other words: Jesus took over the role of
Joseph as the Only-Begotten Son of the Father of the Invisible Universe, Son of Man, Son of the Infinite, as if Jesus had been
nailed to a cross. From the texts we can clearly see that Jesus did not write the book, but Jesus and his circles had used the book
as a not-yet-opened will, when the fortune of the master is still secret. The master in this context was Joseph and his fortune
was his two children, his son Tomas and his daughter in his marriage to Mary. When Judas had completed his re-editing of
Tomas’s original book, he also added his name before that of Tomas. In that way the ’Gospel of Tomas’ saw the light of day,
after the revision of Tomas’s secret scriptures. The Greek name "Didymos" which also means ”twins” is a translation of Aramaic
”Tomas” which means the same. But it can also be the case that the translator who translated “Gospel of Tomas” from Aramaic
to Greek was called Didymos, giving the name "Didymos Judas Tomas".

In ”Apocryphon of James” we can read the following exchange of letters between James and, probably, Paul. This is James:
"Since you asked that I send you a secret book which was revealed to me and Peter by the Lord, I could not turn you away or
gainsay (?) you; but I have written it in the Hebrew alphabet and sent it to you, and you alone. But since you are a minister of the
salvation of the saints, endeavor earnestly and take care not to rehearse this text to many - this that the Savior did not wish to tell
to all of us, his twelve disciples.”

Time and place are not known, but judging from the texts it took place after the Ascension of Jesus. What we clearly see,
however, is that Jesus did not trust all twelve, he had a so-called secret inner circle with his brothers, John and his brother James,
Peter and his brother Andreas and probably Paul, they all knew all secrets around Jesus. They were the only ones allowed to read
the secret book and Jesus socialized mostly with them and not among the people as is stated in the Gospels.

24, His Disciples say: “Show us thy place, for it is compulsory for us to seek it. He says to them: Whoever has ears, let him
hear! Within a person of light there is light, and he illumines the entire world. When he does not shine, there is darkness. – What
Jesus says is so true. He himself is darkness and he always lives only in darkness.

34, Yeshua says: “If a blind person leads a blind person, both together fall into a pit.” - Jesus is thinking about politicians and
priests on the one hand and the people of the world on the other.

38, Yeshua says: “Many times have you yearned to hear these sayings which I speak to you, and you have no one else from
whom to hear them. There will be days when you will seek me but you shall not find me.” – Now, at the End of Time, many
people are looking for him, but they will not find him since he exists in the dark and does not shine.

45, Yeshua says: “They do not harvest grapes from thorn-trees, nor do they gather figs from a briar-patch—for they give no
fruit. A good person brings forth goodness out of his treasure; a bad person brings forth wickedness out of his evil treasure
which is in his heart, and he speaks maliciously—for out of the abundance of the heart he brings forth wickedness.” – So did
Jesus when he killed Joseph in Bethany.

91, They say to him: “Tell us who thou art, so that we may believe in thee. He says to them: You scrutinize the face of the sky
and of the earth—yet you have not recognized Him who is facing you, and you do not know to inquire of Him at this moment.”
– The disciples did not know that their Savior was the Serpent, the Serpent which fooled the Earth.

106, Yeshua says: “When you make the two one, you shall become Sons of Mankind—and when you say to the mountain: ‘Be
moved!’, it shall be moved. – If you can turn yourselves into human beings again, you will the Sons of Mankind.

12, The Disciples say to Yeshua: “We know that thou shall go away from us. Who is it that shall be Rabbi° over us? Yeshua
says to them: In the place that you have come, you shall go to Jacob, the Righteous, for whose sake the sky and earth have come
to be.” – A clear response. It was James, Jesus’s eldest brother, and not fisherman Peter who assumed leadership after Jesus

During one of his last revelations, before he ascended, Jesus sent the other disciples away to their workplaces. But he summoned
James and Peter to share with them these revelations about his ascension.



According to James, Jesus had to stay longer to teach his disciples since his knowledge was extensive. When he eventually
realized that the disciples had learnt enough to go on without him, Jesus thought it was time for his ascension. James says that he
and Peter accompanied Jesus to a mountain (probably Mount Tabor, and this took place 550 days after Resurrection/the pseudo
event). There Jesus embarked upon a waiting spaceship and James goes on: " When he said these things, he went away. And we
knelt down, I and Peter, and gave thanks, and sent our hearts up to heaven. We heard with our ears and saw with our eyes the
sound of wars and a trumpet call and a great commotion.” (Apocryphon of James)

At the end of the letter, James says that that the other disciples asked him what the Savior had revealed. "And we answered
them: "He has ascended." And, "He has given us a pledge and has promised us all life and disclosed to us children who are to
come after us, since he has bid us to love them, inasmuch as we will be saved for their sake." And when they heard, they
believed the revelation, but were angry about those who would be born. Then I, not desiring to entice them to scandal, sent each
one to another place. But I myself went up to Jerusalem, praying that I may obtain a portion with the beloved who are to be
revealed.”

Furthermore, we can see from Apocryphon of James that Jesus worked in extreme secrecy and nobody but James and Peter
knew that he was bound for Heaven. The other disciples were very bitter when they learned that their Savior had left them
without bidding farewell. From their disappointment and bitterness about the actions of the Savior, James could see they thought
they were not even worthy of a farewell. During many years James was the leader of the congregation in Jerusalem.

In the Gospel of Judas, Tomas is called the Inscriber of the Sovereignty, initiated into the secret words of Messiah and receiver
of his secret messages. Tomas was the only son of Joseph and Jesus’s second cousin. Tomas possessed extensive knowledge of
lots of secrets and he was his father’s, Joseph, writer. Among other issues he wrote about nature and Universe for mankind and
he functioned as a guide of knowledge/gnosticism for people, like Gautama Buddha in Buddhism.

For Tomas’s second cousin Jesus, however, the teaching of his disciples were slower, their moods changed from joy to sadness,
James writes. There was no presumptuous joy at all among them after they had been found worthy of receiving the revelations.
As an example, James goes on: “And when we heard these things, we became elated, for we had been depressed on account of
what we had said earlier. Now when he saw our rejoicing, he said: "Woe to you who are in want of an advocate! Woe to you
who are in need of grace! Blessed are those who have spoken freely and have produced grace for themselves.” Then Peter says
to Jesus: " And Peter answered to this and said: "Sometimes you urge us on to the Kingdom of Heaven, and other times you turn
us away, Lord. Sometimes you persuade us and impel us to faith and promise us life, and other times you expel us from the
Kingdom of Heaven.” – It was by no means easy to be a disciple of Jesus. Sometimes he lost his balance and control. Now and
then he was nervous and uncertain, and he had no patience with the pedagogy surrounding the texts in the current situation
around Jesus.

In the Gospel of Judas, Jesus expands his statement and message to the people. Jesus said: “Whoever is close to me is close to
the fire, and whoever is far from me is far from the Sovereignty" Now the most important issues remain: How many Christians
followed James’s directions on the gnostic directives of Jesus?
How many Popes carry “the name of James?” How many Christians are close to Jesus and the fire and are sure of salvation and a
place in the already existing Kingdom of Heaven, when his own disciples are not sure of their Savior and if they have place in
the Kingdom of Heaven?

Finally:
5, Yeshua says: “Recognize Him who is in front of thy face, and what is hidden from thee shall be revealed to thee. For there is
nothing concealed which shall not be manifest, and nothing buried that shall not be raised.” – Jesus, too, wanted all secrets to be
disclosed and bring knowledge to the world.

18, The Disciples say to Yeshua: “Tell us how our end shall be. Yeshua says: Have you then discovered the origin, so that you
inquire about the end? For at the place where the origin is, there shall be the end. Blest is he who shall stand at the origin—and
he shall know the end, and he shall not taste death.” – Also Jesus knew that the end would come. The end will be caused by a
binary star system, a natural process, a so-called Alpha-Omega system. This also applied to the sun worshipping (Aton) with
Akhenaten. How many people on this Earth know that our solar system is a binary star system? In a Swedish scientific journal,
”Allt om vetenskap”, 6-2010, there is an article dealing with cheating and wangling in the world of science. Short translation:
“Science should be about a definite search for the truth. And many people believe that is really the case. But scientists are like
other human beings. They may be wrong and they may make mistakes. And sometimes they lie to us, for money, career or
honor. And once you have started lying, it may be difficult to stop.” Scientists, priests and politicians are walking hand in hand.
As a result, the population of the world stand naked before the oncoming, terrible catastrophes. Here, “ the Blinds Guide the
Reprobates” is a suitable saying.

Hatred towards Jews: From the text above it is clear that anti-Semitism started in Palestine in Jesus’s days. Jesus himself was
against the Jews and the hatred created then is still with us today. Read more in Ezekiel 32:1-10 and on page 52.
Brief summary: Jesus was neither crucified nor resurrected.



Rome/Armenia/Palestine

Parechja/Parittya Julius
+ wife Miriam/Mary +
daughters
around 110-20

Yehosef bar Parechja
Carpenter Joseph
+ wife Mary+ daughter
around 63-18

Toma bar Yehosef
Thomas, son of Joseph
+ wife + daughter
Around 38-62

Tomas’s son  +
wife + children
around 9-?

Joseph Jr
Stepson of Joseph
around 29-26
Worldly and
Davidian Messiah,
Lion of Judah.
Rev.1:7
More info at the
link Tutankhamun

Julia, Caesaris
JC’s sister
around 101-51

Marcus Atius
Balbus
around 105-51

Gaius Marius
Julia Caesaris
JC’s aunt

Aurelia Cotta
around 120-54

Gaius Julius Caesar
    around 140-85

Gaius Julius Caesar
      around 100-44

Calpurnia Pisonis
   around 78  - ?

Gaius Octavius
Rufus
around 100-59

Atia Balba Caesonia
       around 85-43

Augustus
  63-19

Livia Drusilla
   ca 56-29

Julia Augusti filia
       39-14

Tiberius
 42-37

Monobaz I
Bazerus
Jona
Pandera
around 35-31

                  Helena
               around 44-50
 converted to Judaism

Adiabene

Monobaz I or Bazeus according to
Adiabene, Jonah according to the Gospel,
Pandera according to the Talmud, should
be one and the same. Religion: Zoroaster
before conversion to Judaism.

Monobaz II
James
around 25-40

Simon
Shimon
around 24-52

Adiabene Royal Family

 Judas/Yudas
     Jehuda
   around  22-38

Yusef
Around 19-46

      Izates II
      (Jesus)
     around 16-28
Levite and priest-
like Messiah, the
Lamb

Zachariah
    ?

Elisabeth
     ?

John (The Babtist)
     (Immanuel)
    around  34-15

Zachariah was responsible for the care of
Zoroaster’s fire. The Temple was situated at
the Mount of Olives in Jerusalem.

Man, Cosmic
Adam

Brothers

            King Pacal’s shield.
Symbol of blood 0. According to
the shield, at the End of Time he
would be the fifth and dominating
member of the family of Man,
with blood type 0.

I have tried to reconstruct origins around the time
of the birth of Messiah. The only one born in
Judea in Bethlehem was Joseph Jr.

Nazareth

Armenia

Armenia

Jerusalem

Rome

Armenia

Sextus Julius
+ wife + children
around 145-70

Bethlehem

Ficus
carica



Damasus I, 366-384

Hieronymus Hieronymus

At the First Council of Constatinople in 381, the Nicean Creed got its present wording. Hieronymus, Damasus’s secretary, was
assigned to redraft the Latin text of the Bible (Versio Vulgata). From the era of this pope we have the first news of a papal archive.
Because of this, word stands against word in the Gospels, the redraft was a failure. The gospels do not reflect the original Jesus,
the loving Jesus who appears in the New Testament does not exist. It is, however, clearly stated that Mary of Magdala did not find
her dead husband’s body in the grave, she did not even know Jesus, she had never seen him. Neither did other people know Jesus,
since Joseph Jr and Jesus were different persons. Nothing was changed regarding natural catastrophes in the world. We can shortly
summarize that the Gospels are false and are the opposite of Revelation and gnosticism, in which Jesus took part, and which were
expelled from the Roman Church around AD 300.
Revelation 12:1 ” And there appeared a great wonder in heaven: a woman clothed with the sun, and the moon under her feet, and upon
her head a crown of twelve stars.” The sun is a male symbol and in this case the woman pretended to be a man whose name was Jesus
Christ. This planet knows him as a superior, male savior who is bathing below rays of the sun. The twelve stars are the twelve apostles
and the moon, which is a female symbol is the foundation: neither man nor woman, a virgin.  This description can be compared to that of
Sun God Aton, Akhenaten. One thing is clear, Christians had a false picture of Jesus Christ. That is a problem which arose at the
beginning between him/her and the church. It is up to him/her to correct this, if it is at all possible.

Holy Grail
See also p 49

Holy Grail

The four Gospels according to
Matthew/Levi, Mark, Luke and
John

John

MarkLuke

Levi

      THE BEAST
The Catholic Church
  During 2,000 years

Nag  Hammadi Rev.12:1

The same
person,
different
pictures of
her….

Gnosticism



Kemény
     ca. 1820

     Páli Katalin    Hermann József
               Year of marriage 1842

Bleszics Anna  Kemény Mihály
                                1847
       Year of marriage 1868

    Hermann Júlia   Hermann János
                    Year of marriage 1886

   Kiss Mária     Kemény Lajos
        Year of marriage 1909

Bátaszéki         Hermann/Pálfalvi
 Borbála                János
              Year of marriage 1923

Pálfalvi Mária    Kemény,
                        Tibor István
                         1923-1991

            Year of marriage 1948

HermannKemény

Madách Imre
 1823-1864

Madách Károly
       1825-?

Madách Aladár
      1848

Madách Jolán
      1851

Madách Borbála
        1853

Madách Mária
       1820

Relation
Marriage

Majthényi Anna Madách Imre Sr. Madách Sándor

D. Ilonka

Kemény         V.N
Ilona/
(Helena)
  -  -  -   -  -        -  -   -  -  -  -

Brothers

vitéz Kemény Simon
   1884-1945

Cousins

E. Mária
Magdolna
1931-?

Papal marriage certificate
Hermann/Pálfalvi
 Mária Magdolna
      1927-2007

Not related



 Kemény,                   Kemény,
 Emöke Magdolna     Szabolcs József

1950 1949
                                      Dan.7:15

            

My family tree’s long journey from Sumer,
Canaan, Palestine, Asia to Europe and
Scandinavia. My ancestors were poor but
honest people. But when it comes to
knowledge, they were very rich.

E. Tibor
1958-1971
Stepson of KT
Lion of Judah
Dan.9.25:26
Rev.1:7

 1.           2.            3              4

The Lamb
1948
Dan.7:13

vitéz Kemény Simon’s personal emblem illustrating
Ea/Enki, the cosmic tree of life and the sword as power and
war in his right hand.
My father’s uncle Simon was against his daughter’s
marriage to her younger cousin. When he knew about the
Papal certificate of marriage he broke up with the church,
the priesthood and also with his daughter. He was a hard,
determined and just man with great knowledge. The
marriage application was made without his knowledge,
assisted by the priests. He was a strong member of the Ke-
mény family, a known and respected man. He and his
younger son were killed in 1945. Strange things connected
to the Jews happened in Hungary in 1944-45. Raoul
Wallenberg, the Swedish royal family and government and
WRB were behind these. Simon was not only my
grandfather’s brother, he was also my father’s best friend.

Den blågula staden
Baja och dess
stadsvapen

              Original Mary.
Four white lilies were symbols of
carpenter Joseph’s family, i.e. four
members of the family. More info at
the link “Protector of the Architects”
and “The Ark and Global Flood.”.

Armenia

1884 November 5
My father Tibor and
E. Maria met in the
reception camp in
Linz in Austria in
November 1956, her
sister’s family was
also there. Thereafter
they went to Sweden
in a white coach. Her
brother-in-law was
the biological father
of Tibor E. Tibor E
was the only one
born in Sweden,
Linköping, all the
others were born in
Hungary.

Min mor
My father

Jewess E. Maria

Madách Imre. My family tree displays simple people,
they all led simple lives. To focus attention to a message
you should be rich and famous and have relevant
contacts. The Madáchs were such a rich family and had
these characteristics.  Imre was the one most suitable to
accomplish his mission. I can connect him to
Enoch/Hanokh in Lamech’s time, according to his
knowledge. Imre Madách’s great achievement was
”Tragedy of Man”, 1861. See more on link Dynasty O in
ancient Egypt, page 36-38.

Imre Madách, 1823

My good father was a jack-of-all-trades, he could
do almost anything.
I remember that he, in the 1960s and 70s, produced
wine from figs only. It was good-quality wine, it
was very good.

vitéz Kemény Simon’s
personal coat of arms
 and the seven seals,
Rev.6:1-17

Tibor Kemény, 1923

The Order of
the Seraphim

vitéz Kemény Simon

The blue and
yellow town of
Baja’s coat of arms



 One of the worst genocides of all times

Benjamin

Brothers Romulus and
Remus were symbolic
Messiahs

The King’s servant
puts the basket with
Romulus and Remus
into the Tiber River.
The twins’ father was
Mars.

A. Hitler as a wolfFrench caricature from
1939, A Hitler A celestial clock

   Pius X
1903-1914 Benedict XV

   1914-1922
   Pius XI
1922-1939

 Pius XII
1939-1958

Who was, actually, Adolf Hitler?
Was he the one who killed the Jews?

The Pope’s coat
of arms. Stop the
Jews from pro-
creation, i.e. ex-
terminate them.

The Pope’s coat of
arms. The church
as a foundation
and Germany as
partner.

The Pope’s coat of
arms. The three first
Seals (Rev 6:1-6)
form the basis and
the German eagle
and the Lateran
Treaty.

The Pope’s coat of
arms. Again facing
the global flood
and a symbol of
Noah’s reincarnation
as a victor at the End
of Time. God…
.

Adolf Hitler
1889-1936?

Alois Hitler Klara Hitler Adolf as a child
An asymmetrical face. The right eye is
somewhat bigger than the left one.
This is a characteristic of Adolf Hitler.
According to this photo he belonged to
blood type AB as did his parents.

We can read this about Adolf Hitler’s origins in Alan Bullock’s
book: ”It has been said that Alois’s father was a Jew, but there
is no proof, neither for nor against.” My personal view about
his ancestry is that his family were Benjamin’s descendants and
Adolf was a reincarnation of Benjamin. The families of Judah
and Benjamin together founded the Kingdom of Judah and
Benjamin, being Saul, was the first King of Israel.



1889 1899 1901 Around 1923-26

The ear of Hitler’s father and mother Hitler’s ear is a combination of his parents’
ears. The angle between the ear and the nose is
similar to that of his father.

Adolf Hitler was born in Braunau, Austria, son of customs officer Alois Hitler. He early learnt about Life, there were poverty
and injustice even then. Instead, I will continue with ”secret” Germany which was then in the focus of the world. Posterity has
written about it and documented it, without coherence. According to available material I look upon ”secret” Germany as follows.
I have studied Adolf Hitler’s family tree and primarily noticed a person named Gustav Hitler. According to genealogy he was
born on 17 May, 1885 and died on 8 December 1887. My view is that he was declared dead but secretly lived on with a rich
family. My explanation is this. The struggle took place between the brothers Gustav and Adolf, Gustav was the cunning brother.
Note that all pictures in this context show Adolf Hitler.

Adolf Hitler’s asymmetrical face

       Klara Hitler
Her right eye is somewhat
bigger than the left one.

       Adolf Hitler
His right eye is somewhat
bigger than his left one.

       Adolf Hitler
His right eye is somewhat
bigger than his left one.

       Adolf Hitler
His right eye is somewhat
bigger than his left one.

       Adolf Hitler
His right eye is somewhat
bigger than his left one.

These pictures show a likeness between Adolf and his mother Klara
The pictures show a
symmetrical face and the
eyes are equally big in each
picture. This person looks
like Klara Hitler, but he is
not Adolf. He could be a
brother, e.g. Gustav Hitler,
who was declared dead in
1887. The faces express a
very dark world.



       D-1                                                    D-2                                              D-3

Alois Hitler’s genealogy, Catholic religion

The Doubles

Jochen von Lang: ”Hitler. Gesichter eines Diktators“, 1978.  ”And if you don’t want to be a German, I will smash your head.”
Adolf Hitler.
As Hitler’s photographer, Heinrich Hoffman took two and half million photos. Many of them were never published, Hitler had
prohibited publication. Which Hitler? The photos in this book were made public by ”Contemporary Photo Archive Heinrich
Hoffman”, today managed by the son of deceased (1957) photographer. Less known or so far not published photos have been
selected. The sequence tried to depict ”the faces of a dictator”, chronological precision has not been pursued.  As we can see
above, all photos show Adolf Hitler, but only one of them is he. All the others pretended to be Hitler, they were in other words
frauds, so-called doubles in the secret struggle taking place between the Hitler brothers, Gustav and Adolf. All doubles were
needed to make possible a shift between Gustav and Adolf, i.e. Gustav assumed Adolf’s identity and the complete change of
identities disappeared among the doubles. Very careful planning by the involved powerful evil forces who ran the whole process
up to the disappearance of Gustav.

D-1 D-1



The Millennium Realm

AdolfGustav
1878-1903

Leo XIIILeo XIII

On 3 March, 1878, Pope Leo XIII was installed in the Vatican, thereby the planning started of the Lord’s birth into the
genealogy of Alois Hitler, according to the Pope’s personal coat of arms above. In the coat of arms we see a green family tree, a
genealogy. It is divided into two parts with a white, narrow field. On each side of the tree is a white lily with three leaves, a
symbol of, for example, resurrection/rebirth/reincarnation, One lily is the symbol of Gustav Hitler/The Lord and the other one is
a symbol of Adolf Hitler/Benjamin. At the tree-top we can see a six-pointed star as a comet, a neutron star also called a black
sun. Our solar system is a binary star system. The Pope’s coat of arms is connected to Rev. 21:1-2 and the Millennium Realm.
This is how the story of Adolf Hitler started.

This is the Millennium Realm.
The picture above shows Nemesis’s short and
long pentagonal orbits around the Sun. The
short orbit is 800-1,000 years. When Nemesis
passes by the Sun, extensive natural catas-
trophes will occur, because the neutron star has
a much stronger magnetic field than the Sun. In
this special case, the Earth will perish. This was
the secret Millennium Realm which was Adolf
Hitler’s ultimate goal. This neutron star was
well known as early as in Sumerian times, the
old Sumerians called it ”AN”, Pharaoh
Akhenaten renamed it ”Aton.” After having
studied the coat of arms of Pope Leo XIII in
1894, the American mathematician and
astronomer, Percival Lowell started to search
for Nemesis himself. He and other astronomers
thought they discovered discrepancies in the
orbits of Neptune and Uranus. These indicated
that they were affected by an exterior celestial
body with a very strong magnetic field. As early
as in the end of the 19th century, Cora L.V. Scott
in her book “Psychosophy” referred to Nemesis
and its effect on the Earth, i.e. she refers to the
return of Nemesis.

The Sun

Nemesis

Around  1000 years

Adolf Hitler,  1889–1936?, German politician of Austrian descent. He tried to reach
his final goal via politics. He was a Reichskanzler (chancellor) from 1933 and Head of
State from 1934. After a failed career as an artist, he in 1914 volunteered in the
German army. In 1919 he started a political career in the Deutsche Arbeiterpartei
(from 1920 Nationalsozialistische Deutsche Arbeiterpartei, NSDAP). Hitler became
the party’s leader in 1921 and in 1923 he led the failed beer cellar coup. He was
arrested in February 1924, charged with high treason but was released on 20
December the same year. During his imprisonment he wrote Mein Kampf, in which
he summarized his nationalistic ideology. After his release in 1924 he reorganized the
shattered NSDAP which became Germany’s largest party in the 1932 elections.
NSDAP had a ”swastika” as its symbol. This sign is a celestial natural phenomenon in
the sky, formed by the rotation of the constellation we call “the Big Dipper” or “Ursa
Major.” This constellation is also called “The Clock of the Northern Skies” and is a
celestial clock that never needs to be wound or maintained and which is always
accurate. This swastika follows the rotation of the galaxy.

Another important tool was the ”Thule Gesellschaft” founded on 17 August 1919 by
Rudolf von Sebottendorff. He was rich and educated in occultism, Islam, alchemy,
Rosicrucianism and much else in Turkey, where he was also into free masonry. Adolf
Hitler became a member of this association in 1919 and grew to be a skilful member
under the direction of Dietrich Eckhart. Later on the association elected Hitler to
become their leader of the new world order,  which Eckhart disclosed on his death
bed and said: “Follow Adolf Hitler, he will dance, but I chose the tune. I have
introduced him into the Secret Doctrine, opened its doors and given him the tools to
communicate with necessary authority.”

There was a global secret union, Brotherhood of Death Society, whose symbol was
the scull and two crossed bones. The German Brotherhood of Death Society was the
Thule Gesellschaft, whose leader was Adolf Hitler.

The German Brotherhood of Death Society consists of animals in human bodies, in
whose blood there is death. The Arian race in this case was the Benjaminites, people
of the tribe of Benjamin, where the wolf/dog was the dominating animal. Adolf
Hitler’s assignment was to select 12,000 Benjaminites, e.g. Germans. These
Benjaminites were to be saved by Adolf Hitler and were connected to Rev. 7:8. Part of
Hitler’s project was to make a giant spaceship which was to take care of these elected
Benjaminites and leave the Earth before the natural catastrophe connected to Nemesis
was a fact.



The swastika that turns anti-
clockwise generally indicates
goodness, such as happiness,
success  reincarnation.

The swastika that turns clockwise
generally indicates evil such as
death and destruction.

To be able to accomplish his final goal, Hitler used two
powerful tools. One was the Thule Gesellschaft, the
other one his own party, both at his disposal. At the
same time he had a number of doubles of his own
approval. His ultimate goal was to select 12,000
Benjaminites from, among others, the German people.
With these newly selected Benjaminites he was to start
the construction of the Millennium Realm. Besides
this, a strong economy was needed, a well-developed
industry and a strong army. In 1933 he assumed
complete power in Germany, he became omnipotent.

The Thule Gesellschaft and aliens.
The members of the association had special rituals to
reach the level of frequency of the aliens. There was a
group of aliens, probably some kind of ’Small Grays’
who had contacts with the Thule Gesellschaft. This
group informed the association about how to build a
spaceship capable of saving the 12,000 Benjaminites
before the destruction of the world. Around 60
engineers and scientists worked in top secrecy in an
underground factory with the gigantic German project.
The NSDAP party had the vital assignment to achieve
financial balance in the country. So, Adolf Hitler was
busy all the time.

The Thule Gesellschaft’s emb-
lem. The symbol is a swastika
which turns clockwise connec-
ted to the neutron star Neme-
sis’s natural catastrophes.. A
sword is added, whose handle is
a crescent, also a symbol of war
and misery, a female symbol.

Thule (Latin) is a name used by
the ancient traveler Pytheas about
a country, 6-7 days’ journey by
sea north of Brittany. It normally
refers to northern Norway but
also Iceland and the Shetland
Islands have been mentioned.
Writers like Vergilius and Tacitus
also write about Thule. In the
17th century and later the country
is connected to Sweden by
patriotic historians, which is quite
correct.

In 1936 the Thule Gesellschaft suddenly stopped its activities. What had happened? When the Thule Gesellschaft was founded
in 1919, its founder Dietrich Eckhart declared that only Adolf Hitler was to lead the association. What had happened to Adolf
Hitler? The asymmetrical face, a characteristic of Hitler, was not to be seen any more. His closest allies, such as Rudolf Hess,
Herman Göring, Julius Schreck, Joseph Goebbels, Heinrich Himmler, and Martin Bormann knew him well, but they also knew
the doubles who were active in different ways, they all pretended to be Adolf Hitler. How did they react when the doubles turned
up, but Adolf did not?
Adolf Hitler’s mistress was Geli Raubal who committed suicide in 1931, so she did not miss him. The question is: who governed
Germany then? The doubles replaced each other and acted as Hitler at different occasions and nobody noticed that the real Adolf
was not to be seen any more, that he was absent.
One of the doubles who followed Adolf, and in fact resembled him biologically, was his elder, declared-dead brother Gustav
Hitler. This Gustav at once installed himself into the élite centre of power as the Führer. As early as in the 1920s he was known
as Adolf Hitler, a true double. His partner was Eva Braun. In 1938-39 important changes took place in the politics of Gustav
Hitler. He ruled Germany with an iron fist in undesired directions: the extinction of the Jews and a world war were two of them



Rudolf Höss was the commandant of Auschwitz and his own chronicles are
documents of ”the final solution of the Jew issue in the concentration camp of
Auschwitz.”

R. Höss: ”In the summer of 1941, I cannot now remember the exact point in
time, I suddenly received an order to report to Reichsführer-SS in Berlin, the
order came directly from his aide-de-camp staff. Himmler received me without
the presence of his aides, something out of the ordinary and said, approximately,
this: “The Führer has issued an order concerning the final solution of the Jew
issue, we (the SS) shall carry out this order.” (Rudolf Höss, ‘Commandant of
Auschwitz’, 1958).     

Production of spaceships, around 1920?-1945
”No Smoke Without Fire”.

Führer, G.Hitler, 1939

Gustav HitlerAdolf Hitler

These are documentary pictures of German UFOs from the time in question. Adolf Hitler
founded these activities connected to the rescue of 12,000 Benjaminites. Gustav Hitler
issued an order to continue the UFO activities, probably for his own use.
The drawings reveal this: The anti-gravitational system used in this context is probably not
the same as the one used as fuel in most UFOs in this galaxy, the Milky Way. I do not know
how powerful the German anti-gravitational system was, but the pictures confirm that the
spaceship was able to fly.



The secret Nazi UFO, the so-called ’Haunebu’ or ‘Die Glocke’, the Clock. The project was managed by SS-Oberführer
Jakob Sporrenberg and was carried out in East Prussia. There are reports that all 62 scientists and technicians in this project
were murdered after a direct order issued by Gustav Hitler at the end of the war. This secret Haunebu project had nothing to
do with the production of V-1 and V-2 rockets managed by Werner von Braun.

The attempted assassinations of Gustav Hitler 1939 and 1944

In late autumn, 1939, an attempt to assassinate
G Hitler was carried out at the Burgerbräu-
keller in Munich, where he gave one of his party
speeches. The bomb did not explode until Hitler
and his entourage had left. We still do not know
who was behind the attempt.

Wolfsschanze – The Wolf’s Den, (named after Adolf Hitler/Benjamin) Was
Gustav Hitler’s headquarters for the Eastern front during the Second World War. It was
located outside the town of Rastenburg in East Prussia, nowadays in the north-east of
Poland. They started to build Wolfsschanze in 1940 and gradually it came to hold lots of
buildings, bunkers and other facilities in an area of 3 square kilometres. The area was
strictly protected: minefields, barbed wire and fencing. Add to that a number of anti-
aircraft guns to divert possible attacks from the air. Gustav Hitler stayed in Wolfsschanze
from June 1941 to November 1944 with short interruptions for visits to other places. The
well-known assassination attempt of July 20 took place here in 1944.

The bomb

Mussolini and G Hitler

In the closed circle they knew that Adolf was gone, murdered and replaced by the
doubles. One of the strongest doubles was, to my understanding, Gustav. Most people
knew about Adolf’s strategy and final goals, but the successor completely changed
Adolf’s assignment into the opposite. Thus, the resistance against him grew and this is
the reason for the assassination attempts in 1939 and 1944. At the latest occasion G
Hitler was late to a meeting and was only injured. Since Gustav was ”The Lord, The
Serpent God”, it was obviously not possible to kill him.



1925 1923

A symmetrical face, oval-shaped with
a pointed chin. He is squint-eyed. His
nose a bit long compared to the ear.

A rounder, asymmetrical face. He is
squint-eyed. His nose a bit short
compared to the ear.

Alois Hitler.  An asymmetrical roundish
face. His nose is short compared to the
ear. He is squint-eyed.

Klara Hitler,  the wife of Alois
Hitler and mother of Gustav and
Adolf. She is neither squint-eyed
nor cross-eyed.

According to pictures above, Gustav and Adolf had the same biological parents and both were born of female lineage.

D-1, Otto Hitler D-2 D-3

D-4
           D-5, Edmund Hitler
An asymmetrical, round face.
He is squint-eyed.

The Doubles, who were they?
Here, we can see five individuals who
resemble each other and who gave
themselves out as being Adolf Hitler.
Note that I have numbered the pictures to
get some order concerning the roles of the
doubles.
If we look at the pictures one by one, we
get the impression that they remind us of
Adolf Hitler, but there is one charac-
teristic that keeps the doubles apart: the
squinting eye. This was typical of Alois
Hitler and his sons Alois Jr, Gustav and
Adolf inherited this, as did D-1.  This may
mean that all four sons begot by Alois
inherited the same squinting eyes.
Because of this, I maintain that D-1 could
have been Otto Hitler and D-5 Edmund
Hitler. Both of them were declared dead,
but secretly lived on and returned later as
the doubles of Adolf Hitler. After Adolf’s
death, Gustav took over, but the doubles
remained in duty. One of the doubles was
a vegetarian.

Alois Hitler jr,
1882-1956
An asymmetrical
face. The nose is
short compared to
the ear. He is squint-
eyed.



Gustav and Eva Braun, early 1930s

Eva Braun and  Gustav,  Berghof
(Obersalzberg) 14 June, 1942

Gustav and Eva Braun 1945

Gustav and Eva Braun 1945

Adolf and Eva Braun, early 1930s

Geli Raubal and Adolf,

        Adolf and Geli, around 1930

        Adolf and Geli, end of the 1920s

Gustav poses in Bavarian costume in front of
photographer Heinrich Hoffman’s camera.

Eva Braun and Adolf Hitler met in the beginning of the 1930s
when Eva Braun worked as an assistant and model for Adolf
Hitler’s personal photographer Heinrich Hoffmann.

I believe that Gustav Hitler was a hybrid/androgynous
hermaphrodite, i.e. neither man nor woman, a “virgin”.



Among the titles of the Pope we find  The Servant of God’s Servants (Servo Dei servi di Dio), The Vicar of Jesus Christ (Vicario
di Gesù Cristo). The Pope calls himself God’s Servant and the Vicar of Jesus Christ. This concretely means that each Pope knows
who God and Jesus are. The Pope chose his name Leo connected to his pontificate, which perfectly fits into the programme. Leo is
a symbol of the ”Lion of Judah”. His personal coat of arms was his programme, which started in 1878. On his coat of arms we can
see a green family tree, Hitler’s Catholic genealogy. To the right and left of the tree we see two white lilies. One depicts Gustav
Hitler, a reincarnation of the Serpent God, the other one is Adolf Hitler, a reincarnation of Benjamin. The green tree is divided
into two parts by a narrow, white field. In other words: The family will secretly be split up. Gustav Hitler was born in 1885 and
was declared dead in 1887; Otto Hitler was born in 1887 and was also declared dead this year. Edmund Hitler was born in 1894
and was declared dead in 1890, the same thing happened to Ida Hitler, 1886-88. The mission for the church was to find rich
Catholic families who secretly would take care of all four “dead” children, officially they were buried. In that way the Hitler
family was split up. Out of four children, four were with other families, far from Braunau am Inn. Two remained with the parents,
Adolf and Paula. It is easy to understand the suffering of the parents, caused by the priesthood. Such was the vast power of the
church, led by the Pope and his diplomatic mastery. Leo XIII finished his programme in 1903, he was then 93 years old.

Braunau am Inn

Braunau am Inn
    coat of arms

Braunau am Inn
    coat of arms

The coat of arms above
depicts, among other
things, a lion, part of
Bavaria’s emblem and
grapevine, my
interpretation.

This coat of arms with the
lion and grapevine
actually reminds me of
Judea.

Leo XIII, 1878-1903, ”Light in the Heavens”

     Gustav Hitler
   born 1885-1887

Adolf  Hitler
  born 1889

Otto Hitler
1887- 1887

Edmund Hitler
   1894-1900

Pius X, 1903-1914, ”Burning Fire”
The next Pope Pius X. His programme is clear on his personal coat of arms: a six-pointed star and an anchor in the sea, i.e. lying
at anchor. This is a disclosing coat of arms. The six-pointed star is a symbol of David and his people. Jews lying at anchor in this
context means that the Jews should be stopped from procreating. In other words: They are to be eliminated. The church started to
secretly spread ant-semitism on this planet, against innocent people. The aftermaths of this action were also evident in Germany,
where Adolf Hitler started his career as a politician in the early 1920s. The Pope successfully carried out his programme via his
network. The Pope was also an excellent politician and knew how to attract people and nations. He was 79 years old when he
died. His motto was: Instaurare Omnia in Christo, "To Restore All things in Christ."

Pius X and the Vi-signPiux X and  the V-sign



Benedictus XV, 1914-1922, ”Religion Laid Waste”
After Pius X came Benedictus XV. His programme is mirrored in his personal coat of arms. In it we see a church as a foundation and
above the church  soars a black eagle, a symbol, I believe, of Germany. Politics and diplomacy were Benedictus’s main issues. He worked
efficiently with the Germans in secret. His nuncio was Eugenio Pacelli, (the future Pius XII), nuncio in Munich and Berlin 1917-29. Italy
was also important to him. Benedictus wanted the Vatican to be declared an independent state and he established diplomatic relations with
many nations. Even if he never was to see the Vatican as an independent state, he had in many ways prepared the development leading to
the Lateran Treaty in 1929. The Pope fell ill with a flue which transformed into a complicated pneumonia and he died in January 1922 at
the age of 67.

Pius XI, 1922-1939, ”Unshaken Faith”

One leaves, another arrives. The next pope in the Holy See was Pius XI. His personal coat of arms is also a reflection of his
programme. In the coat of arms we see three red circles at the bottom. The basis in this context is the three first Seals according
to Rev. 6:1-6, the lower part of the coat of arms is connected to Revelation. Above the Seals soars a black eagle, the German
black eagle. Thus the pope continues the politics of his predecessor with excellent diplomacy, according to his coat of arms.
His nuncios in Munich were Arch Bishop Alberto Vassallo-Torregrossa (1925 – 1934), and Cardinal Cesare Vincenzo
Orsenigo, 1930-45. During Pius XI’s pontificate the Lateran Treaty was concluded in 1929 with the Italian government, led by
Mussolini, maybe the most important treaty for the church and its independence. The next step was in 1933, when he managed
to negotiate the Reichskonkordat with Adolf Hitler. In other words: Pius XI shared ideologies with A. Hitler. Thereby fascism
was a fact also for the church, in co-operation with Italy and Germany.

Nuncio 1917-29 Nuncio 1917-29

Nuncio 1930-1945Nuncio 1925-1934

C-operation became a fact with the
Lateran Treaty on February 11, 1929. The
Church State was reinstated with an
omnipotent Pope. Cardinal Gasparri and
Mussolini write their signatures….

C-operation became a fact with the Reichs-
konkordat on July 20, 1933. Franz von Papen (1)
and Cardinal Pacelli (2) at the signatory ceremony.
von Papen was the link to the Vatican/Holy See.



The Lateran Treaty and the Trinity: King Victor Emmanuel III, Pope Pius XI and Nazi leader Benito Mussolini

Kardinal Pietro Gasparri, 1852-1934, 1907-1934; an excellent diplomat and politician during the pontificate of Pius XI. I believe his personal
coat of arms is rather disclosing: three Stars of David in white and blue, a green twig as a V-sign in a hand, the clothing of the arm is red
(blood) and finally a piece of bread as a basis. The interpretation is this: Victory over the Jews – Matthew 26:26: ”Take, eat; this is My
body.” In other words: Jesus will defeat the Jews assisted by the church and war. The church is also a female symbol. The bread in this
context is symbol of actions, according to Jesus.

Nuncio Orsenigo leaves the weapon-protected Nazi building
after an important meeting with the Nazi leadership.



G. Hitler and Nuncio di Torregrossa in
Munich, 1933. (G. Hitler as a double for A.
Hitler, for security reasons)

Hitler and Nuncio Orsenigo in Berlin. 1935. (D-
2 as a double for A. Hitler, for security reasons) Goebbels and  Nuncio Orsenigo

Nuncio Orsenigo and Adolf Hitler in Berlin, 1934
Cardinal Orsenigo was one of the Pope’s most important
links between the Holy See and Adolf Hitler’s government
during the Pope’s pontificate.

A number of doubles appeared officially as Adolf Hitler to safeguard his security. Hitler’s security tactics were also well
known to the Holy See. After 1936 Adolf Hitler disappeared without a trace, but the doubles continued as if nothing had
happened. According to documents and pictures from the time in question it seems as if Gustav Hitler, one of the doubles,
secretly took over command in Germany. After that, the doubles represented Hitler. The Holy See also knew about this.

Pius XII, 1939-1958, ”Angelic Shepherd ”

Nuncio 1930-1945

Pius XII was the last pope in Hitler’s times and also the first pope post-Hitler. The dove with the green twig in its beak is a
symbol of Noah’s reincarnation and the global catastrophe which has already started with, among other things, global floods.
According to his coat of arms, Noah/the Lord/the Serpent God will be the victors in the End of Time. His programme is a
conclusion but also a continuation from the programme of Leo XIII.

During his pontificate, much happened in secrecy. As a pope, he could use his experience and his contacts as a nuncio is
Munich as well as in Berlin. He knew exactly what happened in Nazi Germany, he knew that Adolf Hitler disappeared
around 1936, he knew all doubles including Gustav Hitler, who took over all power in Germany after Adolf.



Hitler visits Rome/The Vatican in 1939. An anony-
mous cardinal meets him, the D-5 double who
pretended to be Hitler.

Goebbels, Hitler, Orsenigo, and the Italian
ambassador Vittorio Cerruti at a meeting in
Berlin. It is probably D-3 who appears as A.
Hitler’s double.

Cardinal Orsenigo was one of the pope’s most
important link between the Holy See and Gustav
Hitler’s government during his pontificate up to
1945.

When G Hitler started the Second World War in the autumn of
1939, it shocked the pope. Everybody talked about Adolf Hitler and
his madness, but the Holy See knew that this was not Adolf Hitler
but someone a thousand times worse: the Serpent God/the Lord who
struck again. Officially the pope could not approve of Hitler’s Death
activities, but secretly he worked with Hitler, he was a master of
balance between Hitler and the Holy See. Posterity called him “Nazi
Pope” or “Hitler’s Pope.” One thing is crystal clear – no pope before
him had ever been in such a difficult situation. Nobody knew about
G. Hitler’s plans, not even the pope, despite his close co-operation
with Hitler.

There was, in fact, some tension between Hitler and the pope. The Vatican rapidly built a
protective wall. It was difficult for the pope to follow Hitler’s unpredictable turns and he
believed that Hitler would also attack the Vatican.
He almost immediately knew about April 30, 1945, when Gustav Hitler officially
finished his activities concerning world war and the killing of Jews. In other words: the
Lord/the Serpent God/Christ revealed himself again, to the whole world.
Pope Pius XII was the only pope who was allowed to follow the Lord’s reincarnation
process in the secret world.

Rome/The Vatican. The picture shows bomb
protection devices at St Peter’s Basilica.

Pius XII leaves the guarded  Nazi Building.



Time passed and the end arrived even for the Lord/G. Hitler. The day before the end he married Eva Braun. The same day he
was told that his brother-in-arms Mussolini had been executed together with his mistress. Hitler had fulfilled the promise he
gave to the prophets earlier in his life. The Old as well as the New Testament display war and blood. Yeshua says: I have cast
fire upon the world-system—and behold, I guard it until it is ablaze.” At the end a terrible war will break out because of Jesus:
“People perhaps think that I have come to cast peace upon the world, and they do not know that I have come to cast conflicts
upon the earth—fire, sword, war.” When Jesus secretly wandered in Palestine, he created gigantic hatred towards the Jews. This
hatred has continually escalated across the globe and after 2,000 years the world is dense with anti-semitism. (Remember that no
Jesus was executed by the Jews, no Jesus died on the cross and Jesus did not even suffer before his ascension – the Jews are
completely innocent)
Gustav Hitler’s will: In his will, Hitler confesses to the mass-murder of Jews and that the true motive behind this struggle is
Judaism, created in the past by Israel’s God. Now our Lord is about to annihilate Judaism. In other words: G. Hitler arrived in
order to annihilate all Jews across the globe and set fire to the whole world. His case is nothing new, even Revelation has a
paragraph on Jesus Christ: Rev. 16:15: "Behold, I come as a thief. Blessed is he that watcheth and keepeth his garments, lest he
walk naked, and they see his shame." Jesus arrived unexpectedly as a thief in the body of Gustav Hitler and stole Adolf’s
identity: when the Jews entered the gas chambers they were completely naked. The Jews could not fight against God’s strengths
such as violence, terror and war.

Adolf Hitler’s assignment was to select 12,000 Benjaminites from the German people and save them via a large spaceship. The
Germans started to build a number of spaceships in the middle of the 1920s. The doubles were at the beginning supposed to protect
Adolf Hitler against his enemies. Instead, Adolf disappeared without a trace. Secretly, Gustav Hitler took over power from Adolf. He
consciously steered Germany and the world towards extinction. The 144,000 selected according to Rev. 14:3-4 are supposed to be
hybrids/virgins, neither man nor woman. It seems as if Adolf’s activities were not liked by Gustav. Adolf wanted “real” men and
women. Within the secret circles they knew that a personal exchange had taken place, but nobody dared say anything. The
assassination attempts in 1939 and 1944 were directed at Gustav personally. Genesis 49:27: "Benjamin shall raven as a wolf; in the
morning he shall devour the prey, and at night he shall divide the spoil.” Here there is nothing to turn Benjamin against Judea and
the Jews, but when the Lord assumes Benjamin’s identity things happen in the name of Benjamin, e.g. mass-murder of  the Jews and
the outbreak of the Second World War. Note that Benjamin (Saul) was the first King of Israel and Saul did not follow the road of the
Lord. April 30 1945 is a strange date, it reveals the next life of the Lord, started at the end of the 1940s. He probably killed all doubles,
too.

The Lord and his partners at different
times. The Lord/the Serpent
God/Jesus Christ is not a homo-
sexual.
More info at the link: “Mayas-Incas-
Aztecs and their secrets.”

     Gustav Hitler
The Lord/Jesus Christ

D-1, Otto Hitler                Eva Braun/Mrs. Hitler

Hitler’s last order to his
close friends was to care-
fully plan the last day. On
30 April at 3.30 p.m. D-1
Otto Hitler and Eva Braun
were to be shot. Outside the
bunker in the Reichskanzlei
the bodies would be burnt
and after that an
announcement would con-
firm suicide. Outside Berlin
a spaceship awaited Gustav
Hitler. He was driven there,
then the UFO took off and
he disappeared.  – “Now the
serpent was more subtle
than any beast of the field”
Genesis 3:1.



vBenjamin as the progenitor of Benjaminites, i.e. Benjamin’s descendants, animals in human bodies. The world-famous Danish
scientist Sophus Schack has studied this subject and his” Physiognomische Studien”, 1883, is a biological masterpiece: what do
different animal species in human bodies look like and how do they work? His book gives basic information about “human animal
beings” living inside human bodies. 50% of the world’s population are human animals to be found at high levels among politicians,
priests, scientists, authors, etc. Many rich people are human animals. As far as I understand, Hitler’s assignment was to select 12,000
wolf/dog Benjaminites from around Europe. – The ideal for animals are animals, the ideal for humans are humans.

Well-known Benjaminites; wise, intelligent human dogs who can reach high positions,
e.g. in defense. Human dogs are for example the best and most loyal soldiers.  The War
God Mars is part of history, Benjamin/Saul was the first King of Israel followed by
David and Solomon, thereafter the realm was split. Judas’s and Benjamins’s descendants
together formed the Kingdom of Judah and its kings. Jews and Benjaminites should be
brothers, one more proof that Adolf did not kill the Jews. Why would he do that? Fair is
fair. The fact that he could not think first and then act led to his demise when he approved
of the roles of the doubles in his own party. The wolf is always the loser, the latest being
Adolf Hitler .

A biological masterpiece by
   Sophus Schack, 1883.

Mars



William Donovan, General, OSS Head Quarters. – Walter C. Langer M.O. Branch
Office of Strategic Services Washington, D.C. 1943

British history documentary from 2005. During the Second World War OSS/CIA created psychological profiles of the leaders of
their opponents. Hitler’s psychological profile is extra interesting according to the Swedish broadsheet Dagens Nyheter, 29/7/10
in their TV and Radio attachment.
When I read about CIA’s Hitler profile, broadcast on Swedish TV on August 2, I thought that maybe I will get further
information about the truth of Adolf Hitler. I was about to finish the part of the Akhenaten theme which is about Hitler. Timing
was perfect and extra proof arrived promptly.
It all started with Rudolf Hess’s arrival in Scotland on May 10, 1941. He probably revealed Hitler’s plans and that it was not
Adolf Hitler who ruled in Germany but one of his doubles. At the beginning of 1943 everything was very different, uncertainty
was widespread. Everything Hitler had done so far showed that his behavior was not possible to predict, according to the
Americans.

William Donovan, general,
   OSS högkvarter, 1943

Walter C. Langer,
Psykolog, 1943

In early spring 1943 William Donovan was in contact with
psychologist Langer and at their first meeting he said: ”We need
more credible sources than German propaganda and our foreign
correspondents. We need a realistic assessment of the situation in
Germany. What is Hitler like? Which are his goals? How is he
regarded by the German people? His background? But first of all
we want to know how he behaves psychologically, how he reacts
when facing setbacks. Can you do that?” ”Something like that
has never been done”, Langer answered. ”Then you are the right
person for the job”, Donovan said. “It might not give very much.
The only source we have is literature. It is extensive but often
not very reliable…

…and the psychoanalytical methods are not intended for this.” “If there is anyone who can do this, it is you, Walter. Give it a
try!” Decisive points of view from Donovan. ”Hire the help you need and get started. One more thing: Be short and use a
language a lay person can understand.” If we analyze the questions put to Langer we see that the Americans had no idea about
who Hitler was and what was actually going on in Germany. What we can see from this conversation is that rumours of
Germany and Hitler were unreliable and irrelevant. This was in 1943.
Psychologist Langer’s investigation connected to Donovan’s mission has around 1,000 pages.

D-3 as a Hitler double and Jerrold Posc, expert on psychological profiles. Jerrold Posc writes this about Hitler’s psyche: ”The
child also gets a distorted image of the surrounding world and the people. A vacuum is created during childhood. We call it  ”the
injured self” and in Hitler’s case we need to go back many generations to understand what it was that tormented him. His
immensely sadistic father, Alois, was twenty-two years older than his mother. He abused his children. He used to beat the dog
until it urinated. Once he almost beat Hitler to death. This is like “the Holy Grail ” in my field. This was the very first time a
psychoanalytic scientific study of a political leader was made. And in many ways it inspired me to initiate this division of the
CIA”, he said.

The first interesting and important analyses and observations from an interview with the Jewish doctor Dr. Eduard Bloch, the
Hitler family’s GP follows below.



The Jewish doctor Dr. Eduard Bloch was the Hitler family’s GP. Below follows psychologist Langer’s interview with him in 1943.

”Did Hitler have any medical problems?” ”I treated him for minor colds. And the measles. He was a weak child but had no
deformities. And he did not have tuberculosis despite it being common on his father’s side.” ”Then I suppose you did not know
him very well.” ”On the contrary, I was the family’s  GP. I got to know them when I treated his mother for breast cancer. I gave
her a shot every day.” What about their relations?” ”The relation between son and mother…Their mutual worshipping was
unusual.” ”How did it manifest itself?” ”When I asked Hitler and his two married sisters to come to me. I was to tell them that
their mother had a terminal illness. His reaction was touching. His pale face was quite contorted and his tears were flowing.
The girls, on the other hand, were calm, quite composed. Then I understood the strong bondage between mother and son. During
my years as a doctor I have of course witnessed many scenes like this one. And yet, none of them has made such an impression
on me. I have never seen anyone being so crushed by sorrow as Adolf Hitler. His mother would turn in her grave if she saw
him now.”

This interview makes it clear that the GP has met two married sisters of Adolf’s when their mother had breast cancer. Who
were they? The GP, who himself was a Jew, did not know Adolf as a person hating Jews and it was also difficult for him to
believe that the Adolf he knew would kill Jews. Because of this he said: ” His mother would turn in her grave if she saw him
now.”

According to genealogy now available there were only two children alive at the time. One was Adolf, 18, and his youngest
sibling Paula, 11. True, his half sister Angelica, 24, was alive and married, but it cannot be her since her mother was Franziska
Matselsberger. Who were the other two married sisters? Were they too children/daughters of Alois and Klara Hitler without
being included in the genealogy? The GP Eduard Bloch said he knew the two sisters personally. What has happened to the
sisters? He does not say anything about the small girl Paula Hitler. Where was she? One thing is clear: the Jewish doctor’s story
about the family does not agree with Hitler’s genealogy. Since the GP was Jewish, the family could also be descendants of
Benjaminites, so G. Hitler, O. Hitler and E. Hitler could have been living beside the churchyard with other names in other rich
families arranged by the Catholic church.

Hitler’s genealogy

Paula Hitler from Wikipedia.
”Paula was Adolf Hitler’s youngest sibling and the only full sibling to reach adulthood. Paula and Adolf lost
contact with each other during the First World War but regained it during the 1920s. In 1936 she changed her
name to Wolf, encouraged by Adolf.
During the Second World War she worked as a secretary at a military hospital. At the end of the war she was
arrested and interrogated by American troops. During the interrogation she is supposed to have said that she
could not believe her brother could be responsible for the Holocaust.
There are two more strange items in this short summary of Paula Hitler. One is that she changed her name in
1936 to Wolf, encouraged by Adolf. His nickname was “Wolf ”. Adolf knew that he was a reincarnation of
wolf Benjamin, the name ”Wolf” confirms that he knew who he was and that he was very worried during the
whole of 1936. Then he disappeared without a trace. Paula did not believe her brother was responsible for the
Holocaust, since Adolf did not live in that period of time, and there was no reason for that, either. The Thule
Gesellschaft was abolished in 1936 since a dead person could not be its leader.



Paula WolfPaula Hitler

Excursion to Leonding
An interesting item in Langer’s investigation is the excursion to Leonding. Leonding’s coat of arms is a fable animal, a griffin
which is part lion, part eagle. Adolf grew up in Leonding, his mother is buried there. His mother’s grave turned into something
of a sanctuary for Adolf. He covered her grave with Nazi symbols and memorabilia. Eva Brown accompanied him there a couple
of times but did never record any moving pictures of Adolf by the grave, but there is a number of, unfortunately, bad-quality
stills.

Adolf Hitler
The Leonding cemetery. Is this man Adolf Hitler? It might be him. His head looks like Adolf’s head. The starting point is that
Adolf was the only one who knew his mother when she was alive, it was he who loved her. To him it was natural to visit his
mother’s grave. The doubles did not know her while she was alive and there was no reason for them to visit her grave.

We know that Eva Braun did not film Adolf by the grave. It is easier to identify a person from a film than from bad stills, Eva
Braun knew that. Every individual has a special way of locomotion, similar to a fingerprint.

Note that what follows is my view, based on certain clues.
During 1936 Adolf visited his mother’s grave together with Eva Braun.
He was killed there and buried, on Gustav Hitler’s order. In that way he
disappeared without a trace, since nobody imagines killing somebody at
a cemetery. Leonding’s emblem has as a symbol a fable animal, a griffin.
A griffin which is partly a lion reminds me of the Lion of Judah. Since
Hitler’s descendants were Benjaminites this can also be connected to
Leonding’s emblem. This story about Leonding’s emblem sounds like a
fairytale, but behind the fairytale is reality, a reality which might be
buried at the cemetery.

Towards Leonding

Eva Braun Eva Braun



                                           W. Langer’s interview with Otto Strasser, Montreal, Canada, 13 May, 1943.

”You knew Geli Raubal?” ”Yes, I knew her well. I took her out a couple of times.” How did her uncle Adolf react?” ”He was
very jealous. He finally banned me from seeing Geli anymore.” “Did you see her again?” ”Yes, she came to my flat in Munich.
She was very upset. I let her in and tried to calm her down. She did not know what to do with her uncle.” ”What did she mean?”
”She said that Adolf was very generous in certain respects and very hard in others. He used to lock her up since she refused to do
what he wanted.” “What did you answer?” ”Why don’t you sleep with him? What does it matter that he is your uncle?” “What
did she say then?” ”That she was willing to sleep with him if that was all he wanted. But she would not take part in another
“exhibition”. I asked her what she meant but she refused to answer. I went on asking and at last she answered. ”What kind of
exhibition? She said that Adolf forced her to undress while he was lying on the floor. She squatted over his face while he closely
studied her. It made him excited, it gave him sexual satisfaction. Geli said it was extremely disgusting. And although it was
sexually stimulating for Adolf she did not experience any pleasure at all.”

Strasser’s information is difficult to evaluate. We know for sure that Otto Strasser and Adolf could not stand each other. In that
respect he is not an impartial witness. Otto Strasser’s brother was Gregor Strasser who belonged to the left wing of the party and
was killed during the June days, 1934. After that his exiled brother Otto launched a bitter campaign against Adolf Hitler.

One thing we clearly understand from the interview is that Adolf Hitler was a real man, he had sex with, among others, Geli
Raubal, he was interested in her and other women, he was even jealous.

Otto Strasser
Otto Strasser

                                      Adolf Hitler together with Gregor Strasser

Herbert Döhring
Manager at Bergh, 1936-1943

                                                                     W. Langer’s interview with Herbert Döhring, 1943

”My wife and I were very curious. She often took care of Hitler’s laundry and the first thing she did was to look for signs of
intercourse. But there were never any traces. My wife checked the sheets, but she did not find anything. She also talked to
the cleaners and they said the same thing. There were never any traces. Never.”

This interview clearly shows that G. Hitler did not have sex with Eva Braun, exactly the opposite of the Otto Strasser
interview concerning A. Hitler. This may indicate that G. Hitler was not a man, but a virgin.

Herbert DöhringHerbert Döhring



 Hitler Adolf 1889-1936. German politician. Originally an Austrian, Hitler studied painting in Vienna. In 1913 he moved to
Munich, took part in the First World War and became a corporal. After the German breakdown in 1918 he returned to Munich,
in 1919 he became the leader of the Thule Gesellschaft, in 1921 he was the leader of the Nazi party and in 1923 he carried out a
coup that failed. He was sentenced to five years in prison but only served six months at Festung Landsberg after having been
granted amnesty. During this time he wrote ‘Mein Kampf’ (1-2, 1925-27) where he expanded on his political programme. In his
book he constantly returns to the subject of syphilis and devotes almost a full chapter to its horrors, so he was cautious towards
women. Through clever “wolf propaganda” and permanently organized battle groups (SS and SA) as in the world of wolves,
Adolf skillfully exploited the general dissatisfaction and misery connected to the financial crisis. In 1929-32 he managed to
create a Nazi party for the masses and became Reichskanzler on 30 January, 1933. The secret Haunebu project was already
active: selecting 12,000 Benjaminites from Germany, Austria and from all over Europe. Shortly thereafter he forced through the
Reichstag a number of enabling acts which in fact made him the dictator of Germany. All parties except the Nazi party were
prohibited, their property and assets withdrawn. Through the bloody purge on June 30, 1934, Adolf crushed the opposition
within his own party and after the death of President Hindenburg he succeeded him as Head of State with the title ‘Führer und
Reichskanzler’. Having acquired total control over Germany he could start realizing his foreign policy expansion programme.
Compulsory military service was re-introduced in 1935, the demilitarized Rheinland was occupied in 1936.

1936 was probably his last year as the Führer of Germany. He had managed to acquire many enemies with his politics. For his
security so called “doubles” were secretly installed, they could represent Hitler at dangerous places. There was a number of
doubles approved also by Hitler himself. According to my study and analysis three of the doubles were Adolf Hitler’s “dead”
brothers. The oldest one, Gustav Hitler, assumed power after Adolf.

If we analyze Walter Langer’s investigation into ”The Mind of Adolf Hitler” we find two, different, diverging profiles
representing Hitler.

Adolf Hitler

Analysis of Walter Langer’s investigation ’In the Mind of Adolf Hitler.’

Around 1,000 pages

Around 1,000 pages



Jerrold Posc, expert on psychological profiles

Eva and Gustav Hitler, 1945 Adolf Hitler and Geli, 1930

Langer’s interview with Hebert
Döhring is only about the
relationship between G. Hitler and
Eva Braun. We can clearly see
from the interview that there was
no sex between them.

The image of Gustav Hitler as a
Messiah is a direct hit. Gnosticism
and the Gospel of Judas (page 17)
are exact pictures of what Gustav
achieved. In his eyes and facial
expression we see death. It is
distinct. Rev. 1:17-18.

Langer’s interview with the Hitler
family’s GP Dr. Eduard Bloch, who
was a Jew, is about Adolf’s
childhood, adolescence, his relation
to his mother and about two of
Adolf’s married sisters who were not
included in Hitler’s genealogy.

The excursion to Leonding is about
the cemetery where Adolf’s parents
are buried and about Leonding where
Adolf grew up.
The interview with Otto Strasser is
about the relationship between Adolf
and Geli Raubal. There was sex.

In Adolf’s eyes and face we see deep
depression. It is distinct.

Walter Langer’s investigation can be
divided into two parts: before 1937 and
between 1937 and 1945.

There is a very interesting section in this
theme, starting like this: …Small children
cannot grasp what death is. But for Adolf it
was present. And he probably felt that his
mother was afraid of losing him, too. What
did it mean to Adolf? He probably asked
himself why the others had died while he
was allowed to live. It is natural that he, as
a child, believed he was specially favored.
Or that he was selected to live for some
special purpose, that he enjoyed Divine
protection. It is important to understand the
image of Hitler as Messiah, the Savior. He
enjoyed people who said ”Heil Hitler”, , the
Savior of the German people. He identified
with Christ, but not with the loving Christ
we know, but with a Christ who struggled
for his life against the Jews…
This short philosophy is at the heart of the
investigation about Hitler who diverges into
two different natures and directions.

When Adolf met his sister Paula in 1936 she changed her surname to Wolf, encouraged by him. There were hundreds of
thousands of names to choose from. Adolf deliberately chose the name ”Wolf ”, an indication that he knew who he was. He knew
that three of his doubles were his own “dead” brothers and that one of them would cause serious troubles making the name Hitler
into a dark chapter of history. He knew that he was not Messiah, but he wanted to complete the assignment he received
concerning the Benjaminites. One thing is clear: he did not identify with Jesus Christ who created a hatred-of-the Jews fever on
this planet.

The image of Gustav Hitler as Messiah is, however, a direct hit. The loving Jesus Christ only turns up in four gospels which are
re-written and revised. The loving Jesus did not exist in the real world. Yeshua says: “I have cast fire upon the world-system—
and behold, I guard it until it is ablaze /…/People perhaps think that I have come to cast peace upon the world, and they do not
know that I have come to cast conflicts upon the earth—fire, sword, war.” This is exactly what Gustav Hitler did. Every time the
Lord/the Serpent God is reincarnated he shows his true self. He told his disciples in Palestine, too, what he would do in the End
of Time. And he does it. They did not know then either who Jesus was, he moved around in closed circles. It is the church and
the priesthood who announce a Jesus Christ who does not exist in real life. Gustav Hitler was married the day before his mission
was over to show that Jesus was not a homosexual, which many people say. A hybrid/virgin can never become a homosexual.
Gustav Hitler moved in closed circles too, nobody knew who he was except the Holy See. The Americans verify this in their
1943 investigation on Hitler.

I can well understand what the Hitler family felt. When Death was born into their family it felt like true hell.
Psychologist Walter Langer’s investigation into the mind of Hitler is a psychological analysis of both Adolf Hitler/Benjamin and
the personality of Gustav Hitler/the Lord/the Serpent God/Jesus Christ, we can fairly clearly see that. The 1,000 pages certainly
contain more information than that compiled by the BBC in this programme.



If we read everything Paula Hitler/Wolf wrote and left behind we see that all
her writing is very detailed and well thought-out. Her contacts with her
brother Adolf were moderate. Up to 1907 Adolf, Paula and their mother had
a simple family life, according to Paula. Adolf was an independent boy who
neither obeyed his father nor his mother, the parents had problems with this
little wolf cub. In spite of this, he knew what true motherly love meant.

During the Second World War she worked as a secretary at a military
hospital. At the end of the war she was arrested by American troops and was
interrogated. During interrogations she is supposed to have said that she
could not believe her brother was responsible for the Holocaust.

I have studied the interrogations with her and writings she left behind and I
have found some interesting details which can support the fact that Adolf
disappeared around 1936. The first thing I noticed is that she did not
recognize her brother after a fourteen-year absence when he suddenly turned
up in Vienna in 1921 to visit her, ”It seemed as if he came from Heaven,
totally unknown,” she said.

The next interesting item was a short and important notation by a woman
who worked with Hitler (probably in Munich). She says that Hitler had
mentioned that “he had no family” known to him. – Adolf never said that he
did not have a family, it must have been one of the doubles who happened to
say that he had no family, connected to a theme about the Hitler family.

The change of names: Adolf suggested that she should change the name
Hitler to Wolf. Wolf was Adolf’s nickname. This change of names took
place during the Olympic winter games in Garmisch, 1936 (February 6 -16),
Paula writes. The Olympic summer games took place in Berlin  between
August 1 and 16, under the sign of the Lion . That point in time presented
the opportunity to get rid of Adolf. Everybody focused on the games. I
believe that Adolf and Eva Braun went to the Leonding cemetery, where
Adolf’s parents were buried, during the games. There Adolf was killed and
buried. In the same year Paula changed her surname Hitler to Wolf and the
Thule Gesellschaft was abolished. Thus, the signs point to 1936, when
Adolf Hitler disappeared without a trace.

One of the doubles, G.H. assumed Adolf’s identity and all his power. The Lion is a symbol of ancestor Judah, King David and his
people the Jews. Adolf and his family were Benjaminites who were wrongly labeled Jews. Benjamin was the ancestor of the
Benjaminites and the Wolf  is a symbol of Benjamin and his people.
It is very strange that Paula did not mention the Jewish GP Dr. Eduard Bloch who was the Hitler family’s GP up to 1906 and who
treated her mother’s breast cancer. The doctor mentioned two adult married sisters who were Klara Hitler’s daughters. Who were
they? (Was Ida Hitler one of them?) A Jewish doctor is primarily a doctor for Jews and it seems to be the case that also the Hitler
family was regarded as being Jewish. Paula mentioned her half-sister Angela Hitler who was married to Leo Raubal, their daughter
was Geli Raubal. She became a widow and married Professor Hamitzs. They lived in Dresden, according to Paula.

Dresden at night, before the war. Dresden

Paula in the 20s
Paula in the 20s

Paula in the 40s
Paula in the 40s

Dresden
During the Second World War my father TK also
carried out his military service in Hungary. He
was sent directly into burning war. He escaped
from his fighting unit a number of times because
he did not want to kill, he was against war and
murder. Since he carried valid papers and
happened to say that he had “lost” the Hungarian
unit he belonged to, ordinary German soldiers
helped him with information, weapons and
ammunition.



Paula in the 50s

After that he exchanged weapons and ammunition for food and money. In that way he could buy a ticket and travel within
Germany, e.g. to Dresden.  A city without military and industrial importance? In Dresden my father met three other Hungarian
men who had ended up there for the same reasons, they were also against war and murder. One of them was a doctor and
surgeon named Schultaz from the town of Baja, he was of German descent and mastered fluent German. He was the best
surgeon in the Baja area, around 50 years old. My father did not know him, he, however, knew the Kemény family. He operated
on my grandfather in the 30s and made him stop smoking. The other man was a barber from the town of Pápa, number three a
quiet man who was some years older than my father. All four of them were in the city center on Tuesday, February 1945 at 9.51
a.m. when the air-raid alarm sounded. One of them said: “Let us run to the railway station.” My father thought it was a bad idea
because the railway station would be crushed, but the cemetery was a much safer place. They agreed about the cemetery and all
four of them ran there. That was the start of an air raid which, together with Guernica and Hiroshima, has become symbols of the
merciless air wars of the 20th century. Twenty-four hours later 796 British Lancaster planes and 311 American Flying Fortresses
had released 4,500 tons of explosive- and firebombs across the city. An intensive firestorm killed at least 25,000 people and
devastated 34 square kilometers of the historical city of Dresden which became a ruin with its invaluable art treasures. It was on
Ash Wednesday, 1945. In this merciless war of bombs, four Hungarians survived, in the attack of “Death” against innocent
people at the city’s cemetery.”Nie wieder Kreig/ Never more War” was heard everywhere after the air raid. The people of
Dresden were met by a terrible sight after the air raid. My father told me that all four of them felt very bad, they lost almost all
will of life for more than a week. Within hours, an almost flourishing city was in ruins with large amounts of dead bodies. They
checked the railway station, not much left of that either. Parts of human bodies hung from nearby tree branches. Death struck
again. After some time the small group split up. The barber and the quiet man were the first to leave Dresden, after that Schultaz
and my father left. The surgeon had relatives in Germany to visit and my father went directly to Vienna. There he reported to the
Americans and that finally led to “American captivity” for him up to July, 1945. My father studied sculpture at the College of
Arts in Budapest between 1941 and 1943. One of his favorites was caricature. He drew caricatures of the Americans and played
the violin and piano for them. My father was very popular and well liked there. A top-level military official, 65-70 years old,
married to a Greek woman in her thirties wanted to adopt my father and take him to the US. Both of them said there would be
poverty and hard communism in Hungary, but in the US he could have whatever he wanted. My father was grateful for their
interest and their wish to adopt him, but he emphasized that his beloved parents were still in Hungary and they expected him to
come back. He wanted to find his future wife and start a family in Hungary, whatever happened. When my father parted from
the American and his young wife, both of them burst out crying, hugged him and said: “Tibor, we love you.” In autumn 1945 my
father met the surgeon Schultaz in Baja. He said that he had received a postcard from the barber, a short message that both of
them had come home, unharmed. The cemetery in Dresden was their place of protection and an eternal memory.
The strangest event was that the Americans arrested Paula Wolf on 12 July, 1945. She was thoroughly interrogated. My father
enjoyed the freedom of moving around among the Americans. He met men and women of all ages, maybe he also met Paula
without knowing who she was. During his stay in Germany, he learnt the German language.

Paula Wolf died in June 1960, at the age of 64. The picture below proves that she was worn out and looked much older than she was. Her
face bears witness of a deeply unpleasant and unhappy life, in spite of her being an innocent woman. Contacts with her brother Adolf were
sporadic, up to 1936 she had a lot to tell, but after that time not very much. It was crystal clear that she was a deeply religious Catholic and
had contacts with the priesthood. They influenced her to a certain degree, she lacked sufficient knowledge. All the time she maintained that
her brother Adolf was not responsible for the war and the murdering of the Jews. She was right. More evidence from Revelation, 1:17-18:  ”
Fear not; I am the First and the Last./…/  I am He that liveth, and was dead; and behold, I am alive for evermore, Amen, and have the keys of
hell and of death.” Gustav Hitler was born in 1885 and in 1887 he was declared dead but secretly lived on. He returned as a double and took
over Adolf’s identity and power after Adolf had been secretly killed. Gustav was dead but still alive, he killed around 30 million people in
Europe, he had the keys of hell and sent part of the population to the Kingdom of Death. Being Savior/Christ is a relative issue, you can also
save people from life to death. This is religion.

Who was responsible for the war and killing? Nobody. A. Hitler was not alive, G. Hitler did not officially exist and the German nation did not
know what went on in the country. This is called the keys of hell. Remember one thing: The Lord/Serpent God never commits suicide. Amen

Not far from my grandfather’s house in Baja was a small grocery store at a junction. Behind the store lived a lonely Jewess, around 60 years
old. I met her almost daily. She was an intelligent, friendly and likeable woman of German descent, she also had a German surname. She
personally knew my grandfather. The last time I visited her home was in the autumn of 1964, before I left for my father in Stockholm. One
thing that always tormented her was the killing of Jews. Everybody in her family was gone. I had seen the pictures of her family many times,
but suddenly I noticed a big picture of ex-Head of State Miklós Horhty  who was married to a Jewess and had two sons in the marriage. Hitler
and company kidnapped him, his family disappeared and Hungary was forced into the war. Apropos Horthy: According to Hungarians I knew,
Horthy was a great and loved statesman. Also my grandfather’s brother Simon knew him and his family on a personal level. In 1921 Simon
was knighted ”vitéz” (knight) by then Head of State Horhty. Simon was knighted as number three, after Horthy’s two sons. The Jewess also
liked Horthy and his politics. She turned to me, pointed at the picture and asked: “What did he do wrong? If I were to meet God I would ask
him one thing. Why do you hate and kill us Jews?” Her last words were: “I hope that one day the mystery of the Jews will be clarified and that
we will be pure again to the whole world. This is my only wish,” she said and burst into tears.



Who is the woman at Jesus’s side?

The original’s title: The da Vinci Code The original’s title: Breaking the da Vinci Code

Jehosef bar Paphos, Joseph Jr of Nazareth         Mary Magdalene

Joseph Jr + Mary Magdalene, in their marriage they had one son and
one daughter, born in Bethlehem in Judea,/Palestine.
Occupation: Wine-grower with his wife in Cana.
Father: Paphos ben Yehuda, fisherman Peter from Armenia
Mother: Jewess Mary from Armenia, contacts with son broken
Foster-father: Jack-of-all-trades Yehosef bar Parechja, carpenter Josef
Joseph Jr had five disciples. He was the one crucified in Jerusalem;
His disciples were crucified, too.
More info at the link “Tutankhamun the Young Lion.”

Symacho of Characene                      Izates II/Jesus
Izates II + Symacho of  Characene, in their marriage they
had a daughter, born in Armenia.
Father: Monobozos I of Adiabene, king
Mother: Helena, Adiabene/Armenia, empress/queen,
Izates’s Messiah assignment made the whole family
convert to Judaism.  Jesus: preacher in a closed circle,
assumed the identity of Jew Joseph Jr, had twelve disciples
and was not married. Jesus played a double role, one part
of him was King Izates II, married, the other was a prea-
cher, unmarried.
Origin: The Royal Family of Adiabene.

The basics behind the solution of the da Vinci Code is to be able to tell a lion and a lamb apart. In other words: it is about two
different Messiahs. One is the worldly and Davidian Messiah, “the Lion of Judah”, Joseph Jr/King David. The other is the
priest-like Levite Messiah according to the church order of Aaron and Melchizedek. “God’s Lamb”, the Lord/Serpent
God/Jesus.
The Jew Joseph Jr was married to Jewess Mary Magdalene from Magdala. He had five disciples: Mathaj, Nakaj, Nezer, Buni
and Todah. One of them was Benjamin the Wolf. According to Talmud all five were executed. Joseph Jr was crucified in
Jerusalem. The wife took over activities after the death of her husband, since their son still was only a teenager. After the funeral
Mary visited the grave to be at her dead husband’s side. There, according to the Gospel, she met Jesus but she did not know who
Jesus was. Thus, Mary has nothing to with Christianity and Jesus. This is how Jewess Mary Magdalene is removed from the da
Vinci Code.
In The Last Supper above we see Jesus and his twelve disciples. Jesus, as Izates II, was a member of the Adiabene Royal family.
King Izates II was married to Symacho of Characene. She secretly followed Jesus everywhere and was his protector, as Nefertiti
was for Akhenaten, Malintzin for Cortez and Eva Braun for Gustav Hitler. Symacho is the one who fits the da Vinci Code. Jesus
was neither man nor woman, he was a virgin. Nobody but Jesus knew for sure who was a member of his group of disciples. The
Holy Grail  might in this context refer to Symacho who was the wife of Izates II who in turn played the role of Jesus in a closed
circle. ”This is like the Holy Grail  of my field” explained Jerrold Posc, expert on psychological profiles at CIA. “Now the
serpent was more subtle than any beast of the field “ Genesis 3:1.

    M=Virgin
Shekinah, the
female name



Doomsday. The Elija Prophecy

Akhenaten, the almighty God
                  Queen Christina, 1626-1689
                 Christina-Regina-Alexandra-Maria
Her body structure resembled that of Akhenaten. She was a
reincarnation of, among others, Tiamat-Inanna-Ishtar-
Semiramis-Athena in female form. Born on 7 December 1626 at
the Stockholm Palace. Daughter of King Gustav Adolf II.
Crowned Queen in 1632, abdicated in 1654 and moved to Rome
on 20 December, 1655, received by Pope Alexander VII. Died
in Rome 1689. During her time in Rome she had lively
discussions with the popes, without result. Her role in the
church was also questioned.  During her entire life she avoided
discussions about two persons: Jesus Christ and Virgin Mary.

After the downfall of the Aton religion, lamentations over Pharaoh and Egypt, Ezekiel 32:1-10.:
 "Son of man, take up a lamentation for Pharaoh king of Egypt and say unto him, "Thou art like a young
lion of the nations, and thou art as a whale in the seas; and thou camest forth with thy rivers, and troubled
the waters with thy feet and fouled their rivers. "Thus saith the Lord GOD: I will therefore spread out My
net over thee with a company of many people; and they shall bring thee up in My net. Then will I leave
thee upon the land; I will cast thee forth upon the open field and will cause all the fowls of the heaven to
remain upon thee, and I will fill the beasts of the whole earth with thee. And I will lay thy flesh upon the
mountains, and fill the valleys with thy height.

The Lion

I will also water with thy blood the land wherein thou swimmest, even to the mountains; and the rivers shall be full of thee. And when I shall
put thee out, I will cover the heaven and make the stars thereof dark; I will cover the sun with a cloud, and the moon shall not give her light.
All the bright lights of heaven will I make dark over thee, and set darkness upon thy land, saith the Lord GOD. "I will also vex the hearts of
many people when I shall bring thy destruction among the nations, into the countries which thou hast not known. Yea, I will make many
people amazed at thee, and their kings shall be horribly afraid for thee when I shall brandish My sword before them; and they shall tremble at
every moment, every man for his own life, in the day of thy fall..” - If the Lion falls, the Lord falls because he has bet his lifework on the
Lion, not the other way around. The Lion was never after the position of the Lord. In those days the Lord was in Babylon dealing with
Daniel’s father’s paternity issue in which the Lion and the Lord participated. The Lord lost. Then he met Prophet Ezekiel.

The letter ”M”,  primarily a symbol of Moses but also of a
hybrid/androgyne/hermaphrodite, i.e. neither man nor
woman, in other words: a ”virgin”.
Malachi.4:4-6. Doomsday/the Day of the Lord/the
Elija Prophecy. Elija is a reincarnation of Moses and
Malachi has a text called the Elija Prophecy. Prophet
Elija has already arrived and left again as Pope John
Paul II. ”De Labore Solis”, (Of Solar Eclipse, or,
From the Toil of the Sun.)  “And he shall turn the
heart of the fathers to the children, and the heart of
the children to their fathers, lest I come and smite the
earth with a curse.” Did he succeed?

Alexander VII

The Lord
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  Serpent and Cross
  Viking Era and Christianity
          Queen Christina

1655-1667Alexander VII

The Pope’s personal coat
of arms; Genealogy of
Gustav Vasa as a symbol
connected to Queen
Christina.

And her eight-
pointed star
(Nemesis)

After the death of the Swedish King (Gustav Adolf II) in 1632 a Cardinal Secretary to the State wrote that ”the
serpent, which with its venom sought to poison the whole world is now dead” and Pope Urban VIII conducted a
thanksgiving sermon. Gustav Adolf II was not the serpent. Characteristics of the serpent are that it is a
hybrid/hermaphrodite, neither man nor woman, i.e. a virgin , and Gustav Adolf was not. The person who had
problems with her sexual organs was his daughter Christina, who was a virgin. The Pope had deliberately chosen
the wrong person connected to the serpent. Christina was, however, a superior personality in the history of the
Swedish monarchy. Brieflyy about Christina: When she gave her comments on a book about Sweden, published in
1682, and there found Carl Gustaf, she made a notation that this person was a king who she had created herself,
“quite like (without any comparison) God created the first human being.” From these two quotations in which
Christina compares herself on the one hand to a beast which nobody can tame, on the other to God, we easily
understand why she left Sweden and moved to Rome to the Pope and the priesthood.

Among Christina’s papers is a notation where she says that the “Queen never does or says anything randomly and
is never accountable for her deeds and words to anyone but God. She has always acted and spoken independently
and she will continue doing that until her death, with or without the cardinals’ approval. They should understand
that you cannot demand that a lion should not roar and that Her Majesty should alter her language.” One of
Christina’s maxims was this: “The truth has come. It has spoken. We must believe it.” This probably refers to the
Savior, Christina herself. Christina also had deformities, one shoulder was lower than the other one. We can
summarize what is said about Christina above: Serpent God, Christ and Virgin.

A painting from Christina’s time, of Christina

Christina as Virgin Mary                Christina as the Bearer of the Cross



        Riddarholmskyrkan from the east                       Riddarholmen in Stockholm                                  The Caroline Chapel
                                                                             Keeper of Queen Christina’s secrets

                                                   Tin coffin of King Karl Gustav X, died 1660
Christina compares herself to the Beast/Serpent and says it was she as a (serpent) God who created King Karl
Gustav X.

Serpent God ChristinaSerpent God Christina

Coffin of silver-plated and
gilt tin for Prince Karl
Gustav, died 1678.

Coffin of silver-plated and
gilt tin for Prince Karl
Gustav, died 1678.
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This is a symbol of a spiral galaxy which consists of four different vibration worlds, each at its
own level of frequency, another simple, disclosing model of our galaxy. I believe that
Christina had personal contact with the architect Nicodemus Tessin Jr who drew this model for
the coffin. Our galaxy the Milky Way is a symbol of life, why did Christina choose the symbol
of life for a coffin?  Will her divinity get there, to the Kingdom of Death?

The Serpent God Kukulkan-
Quetzalcoatl left behind with the
Maya and Aztec people the same
model of our galaxy which
Christina handed to the Swedes.
The sign is the same: Serpent and
knowledge.



  Serpent and Cross
  The Viking Era and Christianity

Christianity came to the Nordic countries and Sweden in the 11th century. Everywhere, as in
Sweden, the runic stones symbolize or depict the Cross and the Serpent. These disclosing
runic stones are documents which have remained at the same place during hundreds of years.
They are very clear about the fact that the Serpent is God, for example among Christians and
that Jesus Christ is the Serpent/Virgin itself. Also the Vikings knew this and the runic stones
show their knowledge of the new religion.

 “Now the serpent was more subtle than any beast of the field.” Genesis
3:1.

Apostle John and the
Serpent God, Christ
and the Chalice.



Neutron star ”Nemesis” Alfa & Omega

 Who was Nemesis? The neutron star Nemesis was named after the Greek Goddess of Retribution, Nemesis. This is written
about Goddess Nemesis: Goddess of the Lunar Month -NEMESIS – Goddess of Revenge and Justice, in other words: Serpent
Goddess/Serpent God. Nemesis kallas även för Planet-X p.g.a. att en neutronstjärna krymper till en planets storlek.

Nemesis

Nemesis

Neutron star Nemesis and its solar system
consisting of seven planets.  Planet Nibiru is the
planet closest to Nemesis.

Nemesis shows Nemesis’s solar system which consists of seven planets, Nibiru is smaller than Earth.
The hunt for Nemesis started as early as 1971, in 1983 traces were found and it was definitely found in 1993. Since that year the
neutron star is closely watched and its arrival to the border of the solar system on Dec 21, 2012, is anticipated with
apprehension.

Serpent Goddess Nemesis with her
Serpent staff.

Serpent Goddess Nemesis with her Serpent Staff

Nemesis/Planet-X

Sumerian Inanna and her knowledge

Inanna’s models1 and 2 of neutron star AN’s (Nemesis’) pentagonal orbit around the sun.
To the right of her models we see Nemesis’ pentagonal orbit of today.

Inanna’s 8-pointed
star is a symbol for
Nemesis

Inanna’s 8-pointed
star is a symbol for
Nemesis

Inanna holds a V-sign in
the shape of two winding
snakes in her right hand.
At her foot are two lions
which direct their eyes in
opposite directions.

One lion is a symbol
of Marduk and the
other one of Inanna
herself, i.e. the
Serpent Goddess
defeats Marduk the
Lion.

The Lion and
Inanna. Inanna is
tramping on the
Lion’s back. The
Lion is the basis
of her activities
and her enemy
#1.

This is a very interesting message. At the centre we see a small house or stable, by the
entrance we see a lion’s cub. Above the house are two stars at a certain distance from
each other, a binary star system as a comet in our galaxy, the Milky Way. This message
reminds me of the birth of worldly Messiah in Lamech’s time and Lamech Jr connected
to Lamech’s paternity issue before the global flood. Lamech’s son Utnapishtim built the
Ark and also Noah was involved in Lamech’s paternity issue.



Michelangelo: Cristo della Minerva 1518-1520. Rome, Santa Maria Sopra Minerva. In December 1521 the item was placed in the church in
Rome where we can still see it. In the beginning of 1520 Pope Leo X changed his mind and nullified the contract with Michelangelo. The
statue depicts Christ as the Bearer of the Cross, but not of male gender. Jesus Christ holds the cross with his right hand while he is covering the
head of the serpent, which is coiling in the tree, with his left hand. A reincarnation of Akhenaten/Christina and further proof that the crucifixion
was connected to Joseph’s personal paternity issue and the cosmic tree of life. Here Joseph was the most important person by far. Also Jesus’s
four brothers James, Simon, Judas and Yousef are connected to Joseph as his sons. Even Jesus called himself ”Son of Mankind” but his real
assignment is Rev. 1:17-18 and 6:8: ” Now the serpent was more subtle than any beast of the field.” Genesis 3:1., Amen.

An Arab poster
depicts  Israel as a
snake. An Arab
knife cuts the head
from the body.

 Judah, on the
other hand  is a
Lion, even a
victorious lion.



Michelangelo, Daniel, Sistine Chapel,
                          Rome, 1511

The End of Time


